£ Gateshead Public Document Pack
Couw

L

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Monday, 24 June 2019 at 1.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre

From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey

ltem | Business

1 Apologies for Absence

2 Minutes of the last meeting (Pages 3 - 12)
The Committee are asked to approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 29 April
2019.

3 Constitution (Pages 13 - 14)

Report of the Chief Executive

4 Role and Remit (Pages 15 - 16)
Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

5 Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives - Year End Assessment and

Performance Delivery 2018-19 (Pages 17 - 46)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment
6 Safer Gateshead Partnership Plan (Pages 47 - 56)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment
7 Anti-Social Behaviour (Pages 57 - 58)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment

8 The Council's Approach to tackling problematic sites and derelict spaces (Pages
59 - 60)

Report of the Strategic Director, Communities and Environment
9 Annual Work Programme (Pages 61 - 64)

Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

Contact: Melvyn Mallam-Churchill, Email: melvynmallam-churchill@gateshead.gov.uk,
Tel: 0191 433 2149, Date: Friday, 14 June 2019



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING

Monday, 29 April 2019

PRESENT: Councillor(s): T Graham, B Clelland, S Dickie, A Geddes,
F Geddes, H Haran, M Hood, H Kelly, J McClurey,
J Simpson, J Turnbull and A Wheeler

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor A Douglas

APOLOGIES: Councillor(s): N Weatherley, D Burnett, K Dodds and
S Hawkins

CPL32 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING

CPL33

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the last meeting held on 11 March be
approved as a correct record.

ANNUAL UPDATE ON TYNE AND WEAR ARCHIVES & MUSEUMS AND
BEAMISH MUSEUM

The Committee received an update report on the work of Beamish Museum and
Tyne & Wear Archives and Museums (TWAM).

The report is brought to the Committee to provide an update on how the financial
contributions that the Council make are used and the benefits to Gateshead.

The Council provides financial contributions towards Beamish Museum and TWAM
on an annual basis. Beamish is provided with a cash contribution of £5,000 whereas
two separate amounts support the management of Shipley Art Gallery which is used
as required. In 2018/19 this budget was £25,972. The Council also provides TWAM
with annual contribution to operate the gallery which was £174,770 in 2018/19 and
will be £159,770 in 2019/20.

Beamish has confirmed that the number of schools in 2018 visiting the museum was
58, compared to 50 in the previous year. This equates to £86 per school based on
the £5000 per year subscription.

TWAM provides both an archives and museums service to Gateshead Council,
specified via an SLA. The archives service is part of a joint service provided to the
five Tyne and Wear authorities and allows Gateshead Council both to fulfil its
mandatory obligations in terms of archives and to provide for the care, preservation
and interpretation and access to the documentary heritage of the borough. The

Page 3



centralised storage and management of archives resources is in line with current
government policy.

The financial contribution that Gateshead Council makes towards management of
the Shipley Art Gallery is significantly multiplied by national funding brought in by
TWAM. In particular this consists of Arts Council England (ACE) National Portfolio
Organisation Funding.

The Committee heard from lain Watson, Director of Tyne and Wear Archives and
Museums.

lain advised that TWAM provides both an archives and museum service to
Gateshead Council, specified via an SLA. The archives service is part of a joint
service provided to the five Tyne and Wear authorities and allows Gateshead
Council to fulfil both its mandatory obligations in terms of archives and to provide for
the care, preservation, interpretation and access to the documentary heritage of the
borough. The centralised storage and management of archives resources is in line
with current government policy.

As recommended by TWAM'’s Governance Review a new trading company, TWAM
Enterprises Ltd was established and began trading on 1 May 2018. Councillor
Douglas is the Strategic Board nominee to TWAM Enterprises and is therefore a
Director of TWAM Enterprises Ltd.

lain advised the Committee that almost 50% of schools (17 out of 36) visiting are
from the Gateshead area. The Gallery is developing relationships with schools
located within walking distance from the gallery with repeat visits from nearby
schools.

Funding from Historic England has supported the free delivery of an Art and
Heritage project with Oakfield Primary School. The aim of the project explored how
teachers can use art in the classroom to explore local heritage.

In 2017/18 as part of the centenary the gallery delivered assemblies in 13 local
schools, as a result of these networks further relationships have been built with
Blaydon West and St Joseph'’s School in Birtley. Work is continuing with Whickham
Parochial, Corpus Christi and Falla Park Primary.

lain highlighted some events/ exhibitions which have taken place over the past year:

e Julie Cope’s Grand Tour: The story of a life by Grayson Perry (5 May — 31
July 2018)

Newcastle University Architecture Exhibition in the lounge

Dry Run — Sunderland University glass and ceramics. (18 — 28 May 2018).
Laura Carlin Ceramics (8 September — 19 January 2019)

Gateshead Art Society 70th Anniversary Annual Exhibition (17 November —
22 December 2018)

Paintings from the Shipley Collection (9 Feb — 27 April)

The Gallery are planning to display more art works than ever before with a dense

Page 4



salon hang which will look beautiful. ‘Pop up’ displays are also being planned from
the collection selected and interpreted by community groups and schools
programming in 2020.

The acceptance in lieu scheme run by Ace have just formally confirmed the gift of
the John Cristian studio ceramics collection and next year there will be a proportion
on display with a plan to rotate the collection.

Throughout 2018 and 2019 Tyne & Wear Archives have been delivery a project of
catalogue digitisation by volunteers for the Coatsworth and Ellison family papers
which predominately concern Gateshead and surrounding areas. This project has
been supported by the Carr-Ellison Family Charitable Trust. Tyne & Wear Archive
operates a public searchroom for the consultation of archive documents. The
searchroom is currently open 24 hours per week (Tuesday-Friday) and is visited by
people researching family, house, local and business history from across the North-
East, UK and Internationally. In 2018/19 17% of all visitors from the North-East
came from Gateshead.

Tyne and Wear Archives social media continues to be very popular with over 10,000
twitter followers and 33 million views on Flickr.

World Mental Health Day was attended by organisations from across Gateshead
who support people with their mental health. This is about making sure people can
have good conversations and was organised by Gateshead Mental Health User
Voice.

The first quarter of this year saw women from Change, Grow, Live Gateshead
working with TWAM on Women of Tyneside and RICH recovery programme. The
project focussed on the theme of women’s health and wellbeing. The group then
worked with local singer-songwriter, Nicky Rushton, to reinterpret these items and
stories and combine with their own opinions and experiences, to produce three
songs. One is focussed on the fictional story of “Peggy Pattinson”, inspired by an
image of a women’s mugshot photograph. In March the women attended Blank
Studios to professionally record their songs, which will later be added into the TWAM
collections as part of the Women’s Collection. They will also perform alongside
Kissed (a local all-female band, which Nicky is part of) as part of the project’s
Festival of Women at the end of May.

TWAM works with a number of groups, Gateshead Arts Society have weekly therapy
groups, the gallery has a strong band of volunteers and also have creative baby
groups as they know that it is important that if people are engaged early there is a
huge benefit for the rest of their lives.

In the Summer of 2018, during the Great Exhibition of the North, The Shipley Art
Gallery hosted a cultivation event where staff, trustees, business partners and key
stakeholders came together to celebrate. This was a successful event, showcasing
both the venue, the collections and facilities of The Shipley Art Gallery.

The Development Department will again be hosting a key event at The Shipley Art
Gallery, which will be its inaugural Christmas Celebration event planned to thank

Page 5



CPL34

and celebrate supporters, stakeholders, business partners and trustees in December
2019.

This year saw the first use of the Small Donations Gift Aid Scheme which has the
potential to raise an additional £8000 through unclaimed Gift Aid on donations made
on site at The Shipley Art Gallery. To claim the full £8,000 allowance donations
would need to increase to £32,000 and the Development Department are looking
into ways of doing this to maximise the income generated through Gift Aid.

It was queried if it would be possible to find out if there are particular reasons why
schools from the far west of the Borough are not engaging with trips to Beamish or
to The Shipley, and to see if there was anything that Councillors could do to
encourage schools to attend.

It was queried whether there was any links with College’s / Universities to support
young people with entrepreneurial skills. It was noted that on of the Trustees of the
Charity, Charlotte, is a young trustees and works with and age range in the 20s.
This was something that could be looked into further. It is important to encourage
young people. The Gallery does have connections with Northumbria University and
Gateshead College.

It was queried whether it was possible to give preferential rates to local artists. It
was noted that the Trading Company has been challenged to make a financial return
and whilst as TWAM it is important to support local artists it is difficult to give
preferential rates.

RESOLVED - That the information contained within the report be noted.

REVIEW TO ADDRESS SKILLS SHORTAGES & INCREASE EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITIES - FINAL REPORT

The Committee received the final report which sets out the findings of the Committee
in relation to work to address skills shortages and increase employment
opportunities in Gateshead.

The scope of the review was to examine the existing approach to tackling skills
shortages and maximising the take-up of local employment opportunities with
appropriately skilled individuals from the resident workforce.

It was agreed that the above would be considered in terms of the context of:

o Educational attainment — improving the performance of young people in
early years and at school (up to Key Stage 4).
o Post-16 education and training — the opportunities for post-16 learners

both in full-time education and work-based settings.

Page 6



o Post-18 education and widening participation in HE; Workforce
Development — training and progression for those in-work

o Skills support for the unemployed and those at risk of unemployment
addressing skills requirements for the unemployed and economically
inactive.

o Increasing employment opportunities for local people — maximising the

take-up of local jobs by unemployed and under-employed residents

The review comprised five evidence gathering sessions. Evidence was sought from
the Economic Development Service, LearningSkills, Care, Wellbeing and Learning
Service, Gateshead College, Emmanuel College, Northumbria University, the North
East Local Enterprise Partnership, Skills for Care, the Education Development Trust
and a local resident. The sessions were designed to examine the current approach
to skills, careers, getting in to and remaining in work and can be grouped into these
five main activities:

Improving pre-16 careers guidance

Increasing participation and understanding of post-16 and post-18
opportunities and choices

Addressing skills gaps and improving career progression opportunities
Reducing unemployment and barriers to work

Addressing the skills needs of the future and maximising opportunities for
residents

The review identified the following issues/challenges:

Patchy careers education, information, advice and guidance

Lack of localised labour market information

Increased complexity in funding following the national apprenticeship reforms
Increased social support and mental health needs of individuals

Funding limitations within skills and employment provision

Incorrect perceptions of certain sectors and lack of commitment from within

the sector to tackle issues to overcome myths and attract talent
Complexities of the whole employment and skills system

Direction from nationally commissioned programmes, driven by unit cost

rather than localised need

e Over reliance on European funding and uncertainties around Brexit

e The perception centrally, based on an increasing employment rate, that the

unemployment problem is addressed

e Restrictive eligibility criteria on the provision of support services

e Fragmented provider market

e Time limited nature of provision can lead to a lack of continuity

The following recommendations have resulted from the evidence delivered over the
term of the review:

Recommendation 1: Childminders provide the most flexible childcare provision,

allowing parents to return to work. There is a need to actively encourage more
residents to consider childminding as a self-employment option, including

Page 7



opportunities of start-up support, particularly around funding and training, through to
completion of registration.

Recommendation 2: North East Ambition aims to ensure every young person in the
region can identify routes to a successful working life. We need to continue support
to schools around careers education, information, advice and guidance (CEIAG) and
ensure young people understand the opportunities available to them in Gateshead
and the North East, through the delivery of a programme of sector insights.
Recommendation 3: Support the interactions developed between businesses and
schools through the Work Inspiration pilot via the establishment of a Business and
Education Partnership.

Recommendation 4: Continue to support schools, including school staff CPD, to
work towards and achieve the eight benchmarks of good careers guidance and
supporting young people through the CEIAG Network.

Recommendation 5: Encourage and support the development of mentors, through
alumni from our partners and schools, to inspire and motivate other young people,
particularly those from disadvantaged backgrounds.

Recommendation 6: Encourage the relationship between FE, wider training
provision and schools to develop a more collaborative approach, ensuring young
people are aware of all the pathways available to them post 16, including IAG
support for Apprenticeships.

Recommendation 7: Develop pathways for young people who may have been
unsuccessful academically but would be successful in vocational training
Recommendation 8: Actively work with businesses to engage with post-16 learners
and offer practical and meaningful work placements as part of the national shift
towards technical education.

Recommendation 9: Advocate for those residents with special educational needs
and disabilities to ensure parity of provision, including tailoring specific interventions
to meet the needs of these residents.

Recommendation 10: Encourage the uptake of apprenticeships, in both levy and
non-levy paying businesses.

Recommendation 11: Work with the NELEP and partners to ensure up to date,
regional, labour market information is available to young people when they are
making important FE and HE study option decisions.

Recommendation 12: Ensure all residents, including young people are encouraged
and can access the appropriate routeways into higher education, post 18.
Recommendation 13: Continue to support the Graduates in Gateshead scheme to
encourage graduate entrepreneurship.

Recommendation 14: Strengthen partnership arrangements with FE & HE
institutions to retain talent and ensure Gateshead graduates and alumni are
supported into local employment.

Recommendation 15: Myths and perceptions of employment in certain industries
and sectors can result in skills gaps and hard to fill vacancies having to be filled from
outside the region or not at all. We must continue to ensure young people and job
seekers understand what industries can offer and the skills required to access those
opportunities.

Recommendation 16: Improve access to career progression opportunities for all
Residents

Recommendation 17: Promote career change opportunities for those residents in
work, but who may be underemployed, at risk of redundancy or looking for a career
change.

Page 8



CPL35

Recommendation 18: Promote the Fuller Working Lives contract and undertake
further work with businesses to ensure they understand the support available to
them

to support their ageing workforce.

Recommendation 19: Deliver Gateshead Works, a Gateshead based, demand-led
recruitment service, in partnership with Gateshead College, Northumbria University
and DWP to maximise employment opportunities for residents and actively
encourage businesses to employ local and think beyond their normal routes to
access their workforce.

Recommendation 20: Through early preparation for opportunities resulting from
development, influence training and employment support partners to ensure those
residents furthest from the labour market are well placed to access opportunities
when they arise.

Recommendation 21: Increase advocacy to encourage employers to take on a
more diverse workforce, to drive up job quality and to support career progression.
Recommendation 22: Increase the use of Social Clauses and Targeted
Recruitment

and Training (TR&T) methodology to secure wider Community Benefits for
Gateshead residents from procurement and planning / development activities.

It was agreed that additional recommendations be included in the final Report
relating to the demand for employment support and the impact benefits have on a
person’s ability to take up employment.

It was noted that this was a very well written report. All Councillor expressed their
thanks for the work that had been submitted.

It was agreed a note would be circulated to show the ‘big picture’ ie, where we are
now and the gap between the skills of the workforce and the needs of different
industry sectors.

It was queried what the position was with the LEP, in terms of what it achieves and
what its objective is. It was noted that the Leader sits on the LEP Board and there
are a series of officer level working groups sitting underneath the Board, however,
the LEP is not a delivery body, it provides a Strategic Picture within region and
undertakes a policy and programme management function.

It was suggested that some of the success stories would have been good to see.
RESOLVED - That the recommendations within the report be agreed subject to

suggested amendments and the final report be submitted to Cabinet
for consideration.

GATESHEAD HOUSING COMPANY CUSTOMER SCRUTINY PANEL (GHCSP) -
PROGRESS UPDATE

The Committee received a report to provide an update on the progress of The

Page 9



Gateshead Housing Company Customer Scrutiny Panel (GHCSP).

The panel was established in October 2011 following a project which considered the
opportunities for the development of an independent tenant organisation in
Gateshead.

The panel has recently completed its eighth review which scrutinised customer
service delivered from neighbourhood housing offices. The findings of this review
were presented by the Panel Chair to the TGHC’s Customers and Communities
Committee in February 2019.

The panel used the following tools to collect evidence and to produce the report.

Desktop research

Focus groups with officers (Customer Service Officers and Neighbourhood
Service Advisors)

Focus groups with specialist teams (Leasehold Services, Rent and Income,
Sheltered Housing, Multi-Storey, HomeRepairs and Lettings)

Mystery shopping on telephony and email responses

Presentation of the service area by Head of Neighbourhood Services

The panel produced 25 recommendations which have been grouped into the
following five areas.

Customer Service

Training for Employees

Updating Procedural Guides

Internal Communications and Working Relationships
External Communication with Customers

The panel felt that when implemented the recommendations will result in improved
customer services and more effective relationships between different
Neighbourhood Housing Teams.

The panel requested that the Head of Neighbourhood Services produce an action
plan in response to the proposed recommendations. A planning meeting has
already taken place and the final plan including details of agreed recommendations
will be presented to the Customers and Communities Committee in May 2019.

Currently there are seven members on the panel including one leaseholder.
Members continue to look at ways to promote the panel and recruit new members to
ensure membership remains high.

Panel members have received 121 digital training from local organisation Digital
Voice for Communities following the identification of digital needs of individual
members to help with their scrutiny reviews.

The panel has also attended other training and conferences during 2018/19,

Page 10



CPL36

including

e Stockport Homes — Making Scrutiny Matter — February 2019
e NHC 8th National Tenant Panel Conference — York — November 2019

e NHC - Tenant Advisor — Tenant Unconference — Networking event for
involved tenants and employees — April 2018

The panel are currently using their training to help select the next area of scrutiny
which is yet to be identified.

The panel will have an “away-day” in May which members will use to focus on
identifying their strengths and developing skills to help with future reviews.

The Chair of Customers and Communities has offered to attend this of offer
continued support to the Panel.

RESOLVED - That the progress of the GHCSP be noted and further annual
progress updates be brought back to the OSC to consider the
effectiveness of co-regulation.

ANNUAL WORK PROGRAMME REVIEW AND FORWARD PLAN

The Annual Work Programme Review and Forward Plan was presented to the
Committee for its comments, and approval. The first part of the report highlighted
the work of the Committee over the past municipal year.

During 2018/19, the Committee have seen if recommendations relating to the OSC’s
Review of the Council and Partner's Approach to Roads and Higways implemented.
The OSC has monitored progress on the implementation of these
recommendations. A members seminar was also arranged on the same topic for 10
October 2018. A review of practice in relation to road repairs has also commenced
to assess whether there was scope for further streamlining and efficiencies.

The OSC also noted that a range of options were under consideration for keeping
councillors better informed of highway defects/repairs and other transport ward
issues and an additional member of staff had been appointed to set up a system and
work through outstanding matters.

The OSC will consider a further report in relation to progress against its
recommendations relating to the OSC’s Review of the Council and Partner’s
Approach to Roads and Highways at its meeting in September 2019.

During this period the OSC also carried out a Review of Work to address skill
shortages and increase employment opportunities and will consider a report setting
out its findings and recommendations at its meeting today. These recommendations
will then be presented to a future Cabinet meeting for approval and, subject to these
recommendations being agreed, the OSC will then monitor implementation of these

Page 11



recommendations during its 2019-20 work programme.

The OSC has also considered the outcome of the public consultation on the draft
Gambling Statement of Principles for 2019-22 and its views were sought on how the
draft policy should be amended and subsequently proposed changes were
considered and approved by Cabinet on 20 November 2019 for incorporation into
the Statement of Gambling Principles for 2019-22.

The OSC has monitored Council performance generally, in those areas falling
within its remit, at its meetings on 18 June 2018 and 10 December 2018 and
Cabinet has had regard to the OSC’s views when considering Council performance
overall.

The Committee were consulted on the work programme for the 2019/20 Municipal
Year which has taken into account the following:

Six monthly performance reporting

The Thrive agenda and the Council Plan and partnership work generally
Current issues referred to Committees

Details of potential review topics/case studies

Legislative provisions and guidance on the Councillor Call for Action

Cabinet may wish to refer further issues to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for
further consideration.

The work programme does not take into account new policy issues which may be
identified during the year which Cabinet may refer to Overview and Scrutiny and it
does not include issues identified by members of committees on an ongoing basis
during the year as a result of scrutiny of decisions, call-in and councillor call for
action.

RESOLVED - (i) that the information contained within the annual review be
noted.
(i)  that the provisional work programme for 2019/20 be endorsed
and referred to Council on 23 May 2019.
(iif)  that any further reports will be brought to the Committee to
identify any additional issues which the Committee may be
asked to consider.

Page 12



= Gateshead
COLin/c_rLM_—

Agenda Item 3

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
24 June 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Constitution
REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
Purpose

To note that the constitution of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
appointment of the Chair and Vice Chair as approved by Council for the 2019/20

municipal year is as follows:-

Chair Councillor N Weatherley
Vice Chair Councillor T Graham

Councillors V Anderson
D Burnett
B Clelland
S Dickie
P Diston
K Dodds
A Geddes
F Geddes
S Hawkins
M Hood
H Kelly
P Maughan
J Reay
J Turnbull
R Waugh
A Wheeler

Recommendation

The Committee is asked to note the report.

CONTACT: Angela Frisby

Extension 2138

TB334

Page 13

10f1



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

= Gateshead COMMUNITIES AND PLACE

COUI’)/CLLM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
- 24 June 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Role and Remit

REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services
and Governance

Summary

The report sets out the remit and terms of reference of the Committee as previously
agreed by the Cabinet and the Council.

Background

1. Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution sets out the aims and objectives of the
scrutiny function in Gateshead Council. In particular it should be an integral part of
the Council’s framework and a constructive process which works alongside other
parts of the Council’s structure, contributing towards policy development.
Importantly it will enhance rather than duplicate activity and it will look to broader
issues affecting local people rather than just internal Council issues.

Remit/ Terms of Reference
2. Within the above principles, all Overview and Scrutiny Committees will

e Review decisions, holding decision makers to account

e Call - in executive decisions in accordance with the procedure set out in the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee rules

e Contribute to the policy making process through:-

o Policy reviews agreed as part of the service planning cycle

o Advice given to the Cabinet as part of the Council’s performance
management system

o Scrutinising and developing the Council’s Improvement Programme

o Examining Issues in the Schedule of Decisions

e Ensure other agencies, public and private, play their part in achieving a better
quality of life for Gateshead residents.

3. This Committee has specific responsibility for performing the overview and
scrutiny role in relation to:-

e economic development
¢ lifelong learning

Page 15



culture, including leisure

community safety

housing

physical development and regeneration
transport planning and public transport
local environment

protection of the environment

Recommendation

4. The Committee is asked to note its remit and terms of reference.

Contact: Angela Frisby Ext: 2138

Page 16



Agenda Item 5

= Gateshead COMMUNITIES AND PLACE

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Council _
- ) 24 June 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Making Gateshead a Place where Everyone Thrives — Year End

assessment of performance and delivery 2018/2019

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington, Acting Strategic Director, Communities and

Environment

SUMMARY

This report provides the year end assessment of performance and delivery for the period of
2018/2019 in relation to the Council’s Thrive agenda.

Background

1.

The report forms part of the Council’'s performance management framework and gives an
overview of progress for the priorities appropriate to the Communities and Place Overview
and Scrutiny Committee (OSC).

The Council’s new strategic approach Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone
Thrives, was approved by Cabinet in March 2018 to ensure the Council continues to get
the best outcomes for local people and remains a viable and sustainable organisation in
the future.

Committee were advised at the meeting in December 2018, that a review of the strategic
indicators has been undertaken to ensure their appropriateness in measuring
performance relating to the Thrive agenda.

Delivery and Performance

4.

As part of the Council’s performance management framework, five year targets were
replaced with a single 2020 target with strategic indicators identified as either target or
tracker indicators. These targets were approved by Cabinet on 12 July 2016.

The strategic indicators aligned to OSC Communities and Place have been reviewed to
ensure they are appropriate in measuring performance in respect of the Thrive agenda.

Implementation of new strategic indicators will be developed for Culture and Leisure and
introduced as part of the 2019/20 performance reporting cycle.

Recommendation

7.

It is recommended that the Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee:

(i) consider whether the activities undertaken during this timeframe are supporting
delivery of the Thrive agenda;

(i) any areas they feel they require more detail on or require further scrutiny

(iii)  agree that the report be referred to Cabinet on 16 July 2019, with the
recommendations from this Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their
consideration.

Contact: Marisa Jobling Ext: 2099
Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Communities & Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives
— Year end assessment of performance and delivery 2018/19

June 2019

Portfolio & Portfolio Economy - Cllr Adams

Members Environment & Transport — Clir McElroy
Housing — Clir Brain

Communities & Volunteering — Cllr Green
Culture, Sport & Leisure — ClIr Douglas

OSC Chair: Councillor Neil Weatherley

Lead Officer: Colin Huntington, Acting Strategic Director
Communities & Environment

Support Officer: lan Stevenson, Neighbourhood Management Team

Leader. Communities & Environment

Introduction

The report forms part of the Council’s performance management framework and gives an
overview of progress for the priorities appropriate to the remit of the Communities and
Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC).

“Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives” is the new council approach aiming to
narrow the gap of inequality across Gateshead resulting in more people living longer and
leading healthier and happier lives.

We support the residents of Gateshead through the Thrive agenda. Our work spans the 5
Thrive pledges, of:

Put people and families at the heart of everything we do

Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance

Support our communities to support themselves and each other

Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment,
innovation and growth across the borough

5 Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

A OWNPF

As part of the Council's performance management framework, five year targets were
replaced with a single 2020 target with strategic indicators identified as either target or
tracker indicators.

Our current strategic indicators have been reviewed to ensure they continue to be
appropriate in measuring performance in respect of the Thrive agenda. New and amended
indicators will be introduced in the 2019/20 Performance Reporting Cycle., however officers
are still working on reviewing some of the indicators within this portfolio and
amendments/introductions will be reported at the Six Monthly interval.

For services covered by the Communities and Place OSC, 41 overarching strategic
indicators are currently identified and monitored to support the OSC in understanding its

Paée 19



performance linked to achieving the council aim of narrowing the gap of inequality across
Gateshead and supporting its residents to thrive.

This report provides a performance overview linked to our 41 strategic indicators for
Communities and Place OSC which currently fall under all of the five Thrive pledges.

Section A provides an overview of performance linked to the indicators identified as falling
under each pledge, along with any achievements or challenges. The section summarises if
performance has improved or declined since the same period in the previous year.

Section B of the report updates on specific actions identified from the previous report, while
Section C provides a performance dashboard with individual performance details for the 41
indicators identified, grouped by the relevant pledge.

Recommendation

Members are asked to receive this report for information and consider:

0] whether the activities undertaken during October 2018 to March 2019 are
achieving the desired outcomes in making Gateshead a place where everyone

thrives,

(i) any areas they feel they require more detail about or feel require further
scrutiny;

(i)  note that Cabinet will consider a composite performance report at their meeting
in July 2019.

Page2 20



Section A

Performance Overview

This report sets out performance for the six-month period October to March 2019 in line
with the Council’s Performance Management Framework. From the 41 Strategic
Indicators which contributes to this OSC Communities and Place, we only have 24
indicators which have a 2018/19 Year End position available to report. The remaining 17
indicators are unable to be reported due to delays in the reporting data and will be
reported at the Six-Month interval 2019/20. However the latest available data is presented
in Section C for these 17 indicators.

Five year targets were replaced with a single 2020 target with strategic indicators identified
as either target or tracker indicators. The majority of the Strategic Indicators which report to
this OSC are tracker indicators and don’t have yearly targets. Only 5 indicators have yearly
targets, unfortunately only 1 Strategic Indicator can be reported against its target at this time,
(SCO01) Improve the Recycling Rate, further details are reported under the Support our
Communities to support themselves and each other thrive pledge.

The chart below summarises the overall position and trend in performance compared to the
same period last year for the 24 indicators where data is available to report for 2018/19.
Overall the performance has improved in 11 out of the 24 indicators (46%) we have an
updated position for.

Chart 1. Summary of direction of travel for indicators in section C

12

10

| __ B

Tackling Inequality Supporting Communities Economic Investment People & Families

EImproved [OMaintained M Declined

Paae 21



Putting people and families at the heart of everything we do

We have identified 5 Strategic Indicators linked to the Thrive pledge of Putting people
and families at the heart of everything we do. These are:

Most Recent
Indicator Target 2020 Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)

PFO1- The percentage of homes in the highest energy efficiency 56.53%
60% .
bands (SAP>65) (Six Monthly 18/19)

PF02 - People Killed or Seriously Injured (ksi) in road traffic

. 24% 25.21%
collisions - percentage change over base year
PFO03- Chllc!r.en killed or seriously injured (KSl) in road traffic 44% 30.85%
collisions - percentage change over base year
63
PF04- Number of households accepted as homeless None Set

(Six Monthly 18/19)

316

PFO5 - Number of households prevented from becoming homeless None Set (Six Monthly 18/19)

In the latest period we have no year end 2018/19 data available for 3 indicators. The
latest data available is presented in the table above.

Performance

e This performance shows that there has been a reduction in the number of people
killed or seriously injured (25.21%) on Gateshead’s roads from the baseline to the
current reporting year. This is a reduction on 2017/18’s performance and it is better
than the target for 2018/19 (24%)

e This performance shows that there has been a reduction in the number of children
(ages 0-15) killed or seriously injured (30.85%) on Gateshead’s roads from the
baseline to the current reporting year. However, this is worse than 2017/18’s
performance, and has not met the target set for 2018/19 (44%). This is probably
influenced very small numbers of casualties which often causes year on year
variation in the results but also the change to the recording method which is set out
below.

Homelessness Indicators

¢ |t should be noted that figures for PF04 (Households accepted as homeless = 64)
and PFO5 (households prevented from becoming homeless =316) have only six
monthly 2018/19 data available and prior to April 2018 local authorities provided
P1E aggregated data to central government. This return has been replaced by a
case level collection called H-CLIC. From the 1st April 2018 Local Authorities (LA)
started to collect data in the new H-CLIC format for MHCLG to monitor under the
2017 Homelessness Reduction Act (HRA 2017). The 2017 HRA places new duties
on LAs to help prevent or relieve homelessness. This means H CLIC will contain

Page4 22




information on more people who are homeless or at risk of homelessness rather
than those who are considered priority need. In response to the above LAs have
developed new mechanisms for reporting and recording data. The level of data
provided, has increased and as such central government recognise the first year’s
data would be “experimental “to allow the bedding in of the new legislation, data
requirements and definitions.

e The Homeless Service work closely with the Rent and Income Team (RAIT),
external agencies and partners to assist clients from reaching crisis point and
achieving tenancy retention. Preventing the number of households from becoming
homeless lessens the burden on other services within the Company, Council and
partners. Moving forward TGHC will continue to work closely with the Council and
Central Government to improve data quality and apply learning from the wider
housing sector.

Achievements, Challenges and Actions

Gateshead Libraries are developing targeted activities to support residents most in need of
support, for example working in partnership with Early Help Service and Children’s
Centres to identify families who would benefit from support with early speech and
language development in children.

“Early Words Together” is a programme which aims to improve the home learning
environment for 2, 3- and 4-year olds through targeted engagement with parents and
children. The programme focuses on developing parents’/carers’ knowledge, boosting their
confidence and increasing the fun learning activities they do with their children at home.
Over 6 weeks, the programme introduces a range of positive behaviours and techniques to
increase parent-child interaction around set themes.

We continue to work jointly with Newcastle and North Tyneside Council on measures to
improve air quality and reduce pollution from motor vehicles. Consultation on possible
options for achieving compliance with air quality limits commenced early in March and
closes in May. It is expected a preferred option for tackling the most immediate problems
will be agreed towards the end of this year. Connected to this the Council has been
successful in bidding for a further tranche of funding from the Government ‘s Clean Bus
Technology Fund, which will see equipment fitted to reduce pollution from buses operating
on the X70 and X71 routes through Gateshead.

Works have been completed on the £22m investment works in energy efficiency and new
low-carbon heating systems to 620 homes, across 7 high rise blocks, as part of the
Gateshead HEIGHTs scheme. The project is delivering up to 20% savings on resident’s
energy bills, as well as warmer, modern heating systems, and has received excellent
feedback from residents. The scheme has been shortlisted for the “Best Social Housing
Initiative” in the MJ Awards 2019.

Funding has been received from the Police and Crime Commissioner to continue the Anti-
Social Behaviour (ASB) volunteer service. The service has proven successful so far;
referrals have been received from both The Gateshead Housing Company and the Private
Sector Housing team. Victims of ASB who have used the service have found it incredibly

Paae 23



valuable. The funding will be used to increase the number of volunteers currently signed up
to the service.

Further work is to be undertaken to review how anti-social behaviour is dealt with in
Gateshead. We have also received funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner for a
youth outreach worker to help address concerns regarding youth ASB. A project
specification will be drafted and interested parties will be invited to bid to lead the project.

The new domestic abuse service has been launched. The service now accepts referrals at
all risk levels (previously only high-risk). This has provided consistency of services and, in
some cases, an offer of support that the victim may not have had access to previously.

The review into the murder of Alice Ruggles (Adult D) has been completed. The report was
formally launched in March 2019 and a series of recommendations have been made by the
Domestic Homicide Review panel which will be implemented at both a local and national
level. The Community Safety Board will seek to influence national policy and lobby for
change to improve services for victims of stalking and harassment, whilst also working with
partners to make changes at a local level, such as sourcing specialist stalking training and
developing the domestic abuse champions scheme. It is hoped this will help support victims
of domestic abuse in the future and prevent further deaths.

The Prevent strand of the Government’'s counter terrorism strategy aims to identify and
support those individuals who are at risk of radicalisation. Gateshead’s Prevent reporting
form has now been embedded within existing referral processes, which will strengthen our
internal data collection to ensure we are capturing all Prevent referrals made. An external
organisation has been commissioned to provide Prevent training for Designated
Safeguarding Leads and School Governors to increase understanding and awareness of
the threat of radicalisation. We are also increasing front line Council Officers’ attendance at
formal Preventing Violent Extremism training.

As a result of the large number of drug-related deaths recorded in 2018, Northumbria Police
carried out a drugs operation in March 2019 to disrupt the supply of illicit substances in
Gateshead. The week of action was the result of several months of planning and
intelligence gathering and was the biggest operation of its kind carried out in Gateshead. In
total, 34 arrests were made and a number of individuals affected by the activity are being
supported by treatment services. The drug-related death process has been reviewed to
streamline the process and ensure deaths are reviewed in a timely manner so that any
lessons learnt, or trends, can be shared as soon as possible following a death.

Colleagues from Gateshead and Newcastle have joined together to form the Central Drugs
Alliance, a forum where practitioners share information on trends relating to drug use, drug
dealing and the effects these have on local communities. This forum has helped partners
understand the changing nature of drug use in the area.

Page6 24



Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance

We have identified 12 Strategic Indicators linked to the Thrive pledge of Tackle inequality,

S0, people have a fair chance. These are

Most Recent Performance

Indicator Target 2020 2018/19
(unless stated)
EI16 - Accessibility to Public Transport A) Access to main centres 57% 57.2%
(daytime) 0 (2017/18)
EI17 - Accessibility to Public Transport B) Access to main centres 529 52.8%
(evening) ° (2017/18)
EI18- Accessibility to Public Transport C) Access to key employment 62% 59.1%
(daytime) 0 (2017/18)
EI19 - Accessibility to Public Transport D) Access to key employment 41% 44.7%
(evening) 0 (2017/18)
TIO1 - Percentage of people who feel they can influence decisions in 0 0
17/1
their locality. People feel engaged and consulted. 33% 33% (17/18)
TI02- Percentage of people who be.zheve communities get on well 60% 91%
together in their local area
TI03- The percentage of people survey.ed which are involved in formal 30% 28.00%
volunteering
TI04- The number of voluntary and community sector organisations
. . 131 174
supported by the Council and its partners
. No Targets
TIOS - The total number of hate - related incidents reported to the Set Maintain 382
ARCH Hate Crime Reporting System 282 (April to Oct 18)
TI06 - The total number of clients engaged as a percentage of the total No Targets
number of referrals received by the Independent Domestic Violence Set Maintain 57
Advocacy Service 59%
TIO7 - The total number of reported crimes in Gateshead None Set 21403
TIO8- The total number of ASB |nC|f:Jents.|n Gateshead reported to None Set 6,135
Northumbria Police
TI09 - The proportion of respondents to the question "How much do No Tareets
you agree or disagree with the following statement: The police and ‘g .
. . . . . . L Set Maintain 56%
local Council are dealing with the anti-social behaviour and crime issues 729%
0

that matter in the area"

Paée 25




Most Recent Performance
Indicator Target 2020 2018/19
(unless stated)

TI10 - The proportion of respondents to the question "How safe do you No Tafget?
L . Set Maintain 95%
feel living in your neighbourhood
97%
TI11 - Number of Gateshead residents who are physically active tbc 60.60%
TI12 - Number of Gateshead residents who are inactive thc 25.70%

In the latest period we have 2018/19 data for 6 of these indicators, where we have
demonstrated improvements for 3 indicators, 1 has remained the same and performance
has declined for 2. The latest data available is presented in the table above.

Performance

e Levels of regular volunteering are slightly higher than in 2016. 60% of volunteering
by survey respondents takes place within Gateshead, though this has dropped by
11 percentage points since 2016. However, those volunteering elsewhere in
Gateshead has increased by 8 percentage points to 18%. A further 22% volunteer
outside of Gateshead.

e Performance of reported crimes in Gateshead has deteriorated when compared to
the previous year. There has been a 4% increase in recorded crime in Gateshead
in 2018/19 compared to 2017/18. This is lower than the figure reported across the
Northumbria Police Force area, where recorded crime increased by 6% in 2018/19.
In total there have been 21,404 crimes recorded in the 12 months to March 2019,
863 more than at the same point in 2018.

e End of year figures show there has been a 5.21% reduction in the number of Anti-
Social Behaviour incidents in Gateshead reported to Northumbria Police during
2018/19 when compared to 2017/18.

e Although performance has improved, there are still areas that are vulnerable to
incidents of ASB. ASB is also an area of concern for many Gateshead residents
and so the Community Safety Board has proposed that tackling ASB remains a
priority for partners to address in 2019/20.

e There have been 6,135 incidents reported to Northumbria Police during 2018/19
compared to 6,472 during 2017/18. Three quarters of incidents were classed as
non-youth ASB, the same proportion as in 2017/18. Despite youth-related ASB
accounting for only a quarter of incidents reported, this is an issue often cited by
residents as having a significant impact on feelings of safety in their
neighbourhoods and frequently raised at residents’ meetings and councillor
surgeries.

Page8 26




Achievements, Challenges and Actions

Enchanted Parks continues to be a successful event year on year, and for Enchanted
Parks 2018, we secured sponsorship to pay for tickets to the event (normally £9/£4.50) for
Looked after children and foster families to ensure that all families have access to events
in Gateshead.

As part of the Gateshead Live programme, for families and children whose families can’t
afford the workshop fee we are starting a trial to offer free workshops this is to enable that
everyone has access to events/workshops. This will be organised through schools in
targeted areas.

The Gateshead Cultural Education Partnership are developing a programme with local
schools with low levels of cultural engagement, they will also be working with Gateshead
Cultural organisations including Arts and Library activities. The project will also include a
family day at the Shipley and Gateshead Central Library in July 2019.

The provision of the public Internet service is now ‘free’ of charge to ensure there are no
barriers for the many users of this service who use it for job seeking and the claiming of
benefits. Analysis shows that in the year following the removal of the £3.50 per year
charge for this service, that uptake increased by 13%. The service now has a post
specifically to work with job seekers and benefit claimants across the borough. This has
resulted in basic skills courses being established in a number of Council operated libraries.

Following the decommissioning of the ARCH Hate Crime reporting system, a new reporting
system has been launched in Gateshead. The online form makes it easier and quicker to
log hate crimes and hate incidents in Gateshead and access additional support, figures will
be reported to this OSC at the six monthly interval against the Thrive performance reference
TIO5.

A Strategic Hate Crime Supporting Victims task and finish group has been established. The
group reviews referrals made to Victims First Northumbria and is tasked with looking at
initiatives designed to increase the uptake of support services in Gateshead.

Hate Crime Awareness Week 2018 took place in October 2018. This began with a Walk Of
Solidarity at Gateshead Stadium with members of the community and a number of partner
organisations. An ‘Experts by Experience’ event then took place which saw several local
individuals who have experienced hate crime given a platform to share their personal stories
to raise awareness, encourage the reporting of hate crime and accessing support. Work is
ongoing to recruit additional Safe Reporting Centres to make it easier for victims and
witnesses to report hate crime in Gateshead. Also, in secondary schools and

academies support is to be offered to roll out the Student Hate Crime Champions scheme.
Similar to the workplace champions scheme, nominated students will act as a point of
contact for victims.

We became a domestic electricity supplier for the first time, as part of the Gateshead
HEIGHTSs project — this aim to supply low cost power to 160 homes, helping reduce fuel
bills, fuel poverty, and address financial inequality, and the Council is one of the first in the
UK to directly supply power to domestic residents over a private wire network.

Gateshead Council and Gateshead Housing Company procured Robin Hood Energy to
provide energy contracts to all void Council homes. This will ensure incoming tenants have

Paae 27



a low-cost, ethical energy supplier, with better metering and billing, to further help residents
reduce fuel costs, and financial inequality.

A sector based work inspiration programme for young people was launched which
included NEETs and Looked After Children (LAC). Working with industry, training
providers and schools, the programme will to deliver sector insights and inspiration into
future career choices and the many options available to achieving them to up to 700 your
people over the duration of the programme.

LearningSkills have received a record number of enrolments from 12,032 last year to
12,204 this year. We are continuing to deliver more learning per head of population than
an average Local Authority Learning Service 29 learners/1000 population, an average LA
provider 14 learners/1000 population. (Latest data available is 2017/18).

The Go Gateshead service secured over £900,000 in external funding from the Football
Foundation, and Sport England to develop new sporting facilities in the Borough at
Gateshead International Stadium and Blaydon Leisure Centre. At Gateshead International
Stadium two 3G artificial turf pitches will be redeveloped and will be operational by May
2019. Investment in Blaydon will enable the redevelopment of the site to include a new 3G
artificial turf pitch and a new 6 lane synthetic athletics track, which is due for completion in
September 2019. This investment will significantly increase the number of people
accessing physical activity opportunities with over 1000 additional people per week
accessing the facilities.

Go Gateshead launched the new online swimming platform ‘Oncourse’ which is designed
to streamline the sign up and income collection process for swimming lessons. The system
will also improve the quality of communication and interaction with a new ‘parent portal’ to
provide customers with ease of access to progress reports and lesson availability.
Swimming lesson numbers increased by 10% in the first month of implementation in
January 2019 and continues to rise.

In January the service reported the outcomes and recommendations of a Health Equity
Audit which reported that 82% of GO Gateshead customers live in Gateshead, with 41% of
customers living within the top 30% most deprived areas. Key recommendations of the
report included; Improving data collection and data quality to understand service usage,
and the service to target work with particular communities (geographical and communities
of interest) to improve service use. In response to the recommendations Go Gateshead
recently launched the ‘GO EASY’ initiative which is designed to make sport and physical
activity more accessible enable the service to improve community engagement and reach.
The initiative includes;
1. Education, support and sign posting
2. Provision of free/discounted activities
3. Engage communities of interest and target geographical areas,
through workshops/forums
4. Working closely with GP Practices and community groups to
encourage local residents and communities to be more
physically active.

10
Page 28



Support our Communities to support themselves and each other

We have identified 2 Strategic Indicators linked to the Thrive pledge of support our
communities to support themselves and each other.

Indicator Target 2020 (unless stated)

SCO1 - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse,

. . 50% 31.10%
recycling and composting

SCO02 - The number of library visitors per 1000

5100 4534

population.

In the latest period we have demonstrated improvements for O indicators, performance has
declined for 2 indicators. The latest data available is presented in the table above.

Performance

Performance for recycling has declined this year (2018/19) to 31.10%, this is an
estimated figure, until quarter 4 figures are confirmed. There has been a reported
national stagnation/decline in recycling rates this year. Overall, Recycling,
composting and reuse tonnage for 2018/19 is estimated to fall by 2.7%. This is
primarily due to poor yields of green waste capture on the kerbside and HWRC
services during the main growing season from April to August and mainly due to a
cold snap at the start of the year and then hot and dry weather through early
summer. Whilst the tonnage of green waste at the end of the season improved
compared to the same period in 2017/18, this wasn’t enough to offset the earlier
drop.

The use of libraries nationally has decreased and in Gateshead the level of library
usage remains good at 915,823 visitors (4534 per 000 population) but has shown a
decrease of 9,202 from 2017/18. Comparative performance data for other library
services regionally and nationally shows that in 2017/18 the Gateshead
performance for this indicator ranked the service 1st among a group of ten
statistically neighbours and in the top 20% of authorities nationally. So, although
there is a downward trend, performance in Gateshead remains nationally at a very
high level. Comparative data for 2018/19 will not be received until March 2020.

Achievements, Challenges and Actions

A new team of officers is now operating across Gateshead issuing Fixed Penalty Notices
for a range of offences including dog fouling, littering, littering from vehicles, fly posting and
graffiti. This will help improve the local environment and reduce the nuisance suffered by
communities from these offences.

The planning and start of Art Diamonds, a three-year project funded by Arts Council and
Baring Foundation was launched in 2018. This project is helping older people to feel more
connected and improve their wellbeing through creative activities and workshops in

11
Page 29

Most Recent Performance 2018/19




Gateshead Libraries. The project will continue and look to target those older people who
are feeling socially isolated, including working with the Readers at Home Group.

Family, school and public activities took place for Angel20 & Angel21 to celebrate the 20"
and 21st anniversary of the Angel of the North. Projects enabled families and school
children to engage in activities such as knitted angel adventures, a nature bio blitz,
birthday celebrations at the Angel with art workshops, exhibitions and school projects.

Following the world café events that were held early in 2018/19, a group of residents from
the Beacon Lough East estate have come together to form a residents’ group. Working with
a community development officer from a local charity, the residents are working towards
improving facilities and opportunities for the community.

The issue of youth disorder is increasingly challenging; it is often cited as an issue by
residents but the number of reports are falling. The nature of youth disorder is changing
too, and now often involves large groups of young people (sometimes up to 100 youths at a
time), substances and weapons.

Ongoing challenges continue to lie in the threat of budget reductions to the effective
provision of services to local communities. Basic services such as road maintenance and
local bus services are becoming increasingly difficult to sustain in the face of continuing
pressures on funding.

12
Page 30



Invest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for
employment, innovation and growth across the borough

We have identified 19 Strategic Indicators linked to the Thrive pledge of invest in our
economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment, innovation and

growth across the borough.

Most Recent

equivalent to at least an NVQ Level 1* or any other formal

gualifications

Indicator Target 2020 Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)
EIO1 - The number of people of working age in Gateshead 127900
127,799
aged 16-64 (2017/18)
. 93519
EIO2 - Increase overall housing supply 96,167 (2017/18)
EIO3 - Proportion of the Borough total housing stock that
1.45%
has been empty for 6 months or more at 31st March each 1.19%
(2017/18)
year
EI04 - The number of new affordable properties that are 64
. . . 294
completed and liable for Council Tax in a year (2017/18)
EIO5 - The number of enterprises in Gateshead 5350 5,185
EI06 - The number of people economically active and in
employment expressed as a percentage of all people aged 73.20% 73.40%
16-64
EI07 - Economic Activity Rate - Percentage of all people 80% 77.00%
aged 16-64
EIO8 - This indicator will measure the increase to the
'working popula?tion's average weekly incomg, therefore £533.30 £507.90
highlighting any increase or decrease to earning household
income levels
EI09 - Residents employed in Occupations requiring higher
7.809 .109
skill levels - SOC Groups 1-3 37.80% 38.10%
EI10 - The number of jobs in Gateshead 102000 93,000
El1l - The percentage of Gateshead Residents aged 16-64 70 6.1
in Self Employment ' (2017/18)
El12- Gross weekly pay of jobs in Gateshead 520 £477.60
EI13 - The percentage of people living in the borough aged
16-64 who identify themselves as not having a qualification 8.00% 10.30%

13
Page 31




Most Recent
Indicator Target 2020 Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)

El14 - The percentage of people living in the borough aged

16-64 who identify themselves having a qualification 57% 49.80%

equivalent to at least an NVQ Level 3

EI15 - The number of visitors to Gateshead tbc 1,889,952* (Provisional)

In the latest period we have 2018/19 figures for 9 of these indicators, we have demonstrated
improvements for 6 indicators, performance has declined for 4 indicators. The latest data
available is presented in the table above.

Performance

There continues to be good progress with the number of enterprises increasing year
on year since 2013 with the current level at 5,185. Growth is being driven through
start-up, scale-up and inward investment activity. The overall annual business birth
figure of 1,035 exceeds pre-recession levels. However, there were also 745
business deaths in the period.

Employment rates both nationally and locally continue at or around record highs
and have been above target in all four quarters. Gateshead continues to compare
well with/out-perform the wider N.E region (70.8%) but as would be expected still
lags the GB rate which stands at 75.1%. Whilst longer term economic forecasts
remain good, maintaining current levels of performance may be challenging due to
the immediate and shorter-term uncertainties and implications of Brexit.

The number of employees in jobs in Gateshead had been increasing year on year
since 2013 however a decline was recorded between 2015 and 2017 across a
number of sectors where economic and political uncertainty has impacted on
business confidence.

Provisional visitor numbers to Gateshead have increased to just under 1.9 million
for 2018. Two of our Leisure facilities have shown an increase in footfall within the
year, with visitors increasing to 546,479 for Gateshead Leisure Centre.

Achievements, Challenges and Actions

Success rates for our apprenticeships have increased by 15% in the last 6 months, the
national average for Apprenticeship success is 68% by the end of January 2019 we were
performing at 75%. Although nationally apprenticeship numbers are decreasing,
Gateshead has recruited 220 new apprenticeship starts and have enrolled 120 young
people in our 16-18 study programmes and traineeships.

14
Page 32




There has been a decrease in the percentage of in learners from deprived communities at
75.1%, We are continuing to target those communities with greatest need, however the
funding of post 16 learning has reduced our capacity to deliver to small cohorts of learners.

Learningskills are changing the delivery of Community Learning to ensure we attract a
greater number of learners from deprived communities. We are also developing provision
in the Interchange, as the transport hub for Gateshead it is successful in attracting learners
from the most deprived communities.

We have developed specialist provision to ensure we support those with greatest need,
including Special educational needs and disability (SEND) learners, Refugees, Alternative
Education/ Not in education, employment or training (NEET), Care leavers and looked
after children (LAC), Unemployed Parents who have had children removed, people with
Mental Health Difficulties, Young People who would not engage with traditional Further
Education, Apprenticeships that target young people etc

Number of male learners are staying stubbornly low at 32.9, We are continuing to develop
our vocational and Youth offer, our vocational offer attracts over 40% male learners and
our Youth offer attracts 56.7%. We also are continuing to deliver our Construction and
although we try to challenge the stereotype, construction centre at Pelaw tends to attract a
mostly male cohort. We are also trying to break the almost solely female engagement with
teaching assistants. We are also reviewing our curriculum to identify courses that would be
more attractive to men.

We have tried many mechanisms to engage more with learners in the West of the
borough, however our provision in the west has generally small cohort sizes which makes
it economic to run, we are investigating with the Economic Development service if there is
a way to backfill the funding to allow small cohorts to become economic. We are also
developing a roll out of programmes in Chopwell.

The North East Joint Transport Committee was successful in a bid to the Government’s
Transforming Cities Fund for improvements to cycle and walking infrastructure to connect
people to employment. This includes improved links to the expanding employment area at
Folllingsby, and better connections across the High-Level Bridge from Newcastle. A much
larger bid for a second phase of action is in preparation and will be submitted in June.

The Land of Oak and Iron Heritage centre opened in September 2018, since then more
than 49,500 people have visited the centre with 100,000 expected in the first 12 months.
The heritage centre has provided a central point to promote activities and volunteering
opportunities and has provided an opportunity to reinvigorate community groups by
attracting new members and volunteers. Employment has been secured for 18 people
which is significantly above the number of roles expected. The heritage centre has also
been shortlisted for several awards, a RICS award under the tourism category, with the
outcome expected in late April 2019 and three Northern LABC Building Excellence
awards, with the outcome of these awards expected in Summer 2019.

We have doubled our annual investment in energy efficiency works to its buildings in
2018/19 to £500k, helping to reducing energy costs and continue our reductions in Carbon
emissions. To date, we have reduced carbon emissions by 40% since 2017/18 and works
completed in 2018/19 will see this reduce further.

15
Page 33



We continued to invest in the Gateshead District Energy Scheme, completing extensions
of the network to Gateshead Leisure Centre cluster, and to 160 homes in Regent Court,
which not only provide extra construction work for the supply chain, but also increased the
supply of low-cost, low carbon heat and power to customers in Gateshead.

We have continued to raise the profile of Gateshead as an investment location, coordinate
responses to mobile investment enquiries and support local businesses expand.
Investment in the Gateshead economy will provide sustainable opportunities for
employment and growth, supporting the Thrive Agenda.

During 2018/19 the Service supported 45 businesses to implement successful investment
projects and 24 new start-ups; creating 948 Jobs and safeguarding 218 jobs in Gateshead.
This included 17 inward investment projects of which 6 were reinvestment projects by
existing Foreign Direct Investment (FDI).

Notable projects include:

¢ Any Van, a London based logistics and van hire operator established premises in
Gateshead

e Team Valley based home improvements company My Pay Weekly expanded and
relocated to new premises at Portobello Trade Park, Birtley.

e Pride Work Media, an independent radio station, relocated from Newcastle to
Stonehills in Pelaw. The project will include the provision of studio space for other
media to co-locate and cluster on site.

¢ Cintel Global Ltd, a London based video production and 3D capture company
relocated to PROTO the Emerging Technology Centre in the Baltic Quarter.

e US company, Parker Hannifin Ltd - Bioscience Division (formally Domnick Hunter)
expanded their facility in Birtley to create new offices and lab space and support
further R&D activities.

e Expansion by Polish video games developer People Can Fly based at the Northern
Design Centre who are now recruiting to new programmer positions.

e Media Works, a tech business, expanding within Gateshead, moving from Team
Valley and securing 10,000sq ft of space at Metro Riverside.

e Pulsant, formerly Onyx, opened a new technical service centre on Team Valley in
February. The project resulted in the creation of up to 150 new jobs.

e Omega Plastics Group relocated two operations from Hartlepool and
Northumberland into a single facility at Team Valley, relocating 50 jobs and creating
43 new jobs.

Work has also continued to raise the international profile of Gateshead as a sustainable
business investment location. We have hosted visits by international delegations from
Shangrao Economic and Technology Zone China, Region Vastra Gotaland, Sweden,
Brazil, Ireland, India and Canadian tech firms, presenting Gateshead's inward investment
proposition including supply chain development and collaboration opportunities.
Discussions ongoing with Region Vastra Gotaland, Sweden regarding opportunities to
establish a trade and investment partnership initially centred around a soft-landing
programme for Swedish tech businesses to explore UK market opportunities and
collaborations.

16
Page 34



The Team Valley Consultancy Project was initiated, this project involves working with
Newcastle University and UK Land Estate, to look at role of Team Valley and possible
interventions to meet to industry need and support achievement of growth forecasts.
Project concluded in January 2019. Findings have been shared with UK Land Estates and
will inform future strategy and master planning.

Work has been progressing with strengthening links with local schools, colleges and
universities through group tours of PROTO, hosting events and workshops for students
undertaking research projects in emerging tech and delivery of a digital career pathways
inspiration event for years 8 and 10 at Kingsmeadow Community School.

Six business incubation and innovation centres have been supporting activities to promote
entrepreneurship and tech sector growth providing over 100 businesses access to
affordable and flexible workspace in a supportive environment, supporting 500 jobs. 80%
occupancy level achieved and £1.5m income generated.

£2.6m ERDF funding was secured to deliver a £2.6m digital innovation programme in
partnership with Sunderland Software City and Digital Catapult to support improvements in
businesses competitiveness and productivity through the adoption of new digital
technologies. The three-year programme launched in April 2018 and will support 42
business.

We have enhanced residents’ access to employment opportunities arising from major
regeneration projects and business investment. Application of approach to Community
Benefits methodology strengthen including the provision of financial contributions from
developers as alternative to employment opportunities. During the period developer
commitments of £182k towards recruitment activity along with 4 apprenticeships have
been secured. Employment and training requirements have been included in the Heads of
Terms agreement for Gateshead Quays redevelopment

£1.4m ERDF funding secured for Business Energy Efficiency Support Programme. Project
will support 250 SMEs across the region with advice and funding to achieve reductions in
energy costs and emissions and increasing resilience. During the period 9 businesses
from Gateshead were supported with an energy audit in the first instance and the
opportunity to apply for grant assistance for works that needs to be carried out to improve
efficiencies.

We continue to support VRTGO Labs, Europe's largest industry led cluster of businesses
operating in the immersive tech sector. The initiative, established by Gateshead Council in
2016, supported 34 businesses during the period, holding 6 events attended by 188
business people and sector professionals. 5 businesses within the cluster were supported
to access tender opportunities and 6 collaborations facilitated between cluster members,
leading to a £200k contract being secured by one. VRTGO Labs website refreshed and
relaunched (www.vrtgolabs.com).

17
Page 35



Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead

We have identified 3 Strategic Indicators linked to the Thrive pledge of Work together and

fight for a better future for Gateshead, these are

Most Recent

Indicator Target 2020 Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)
WTO01- The CO2 reduction from Local Authority Operations. Part A) 50% 38.4% Reduction
Reports Actual Figure ° (2017/18)
WTO02- The CO2 reduction from Local Authority Operations. Part B) 50% 40.2% Reduction
Reports Weather Corrected Figure ° (2017/18)
WTO03 - The percentage of renewable energy generated locally, within 2 1%
the borough of Gateshead, against total amount of energy used within 16.80% =

the Borough of Gateshead

(Six Months 2018/19)

In the latest period we have no 2018/19 data available for these indicators. The latest data

available is presented in the table above.

Achievements, Challenges and Actions

We have secured funding of £499,200 from the National Lottery Heritage Fund. This
funding will be used to transform physical and digital access to the local studies archive
held at Gateshead Central Library. The project will include a borough wide community
engagement programme to bring the collection to attention of diverse new audiences.

The Library service has initiated a piece of research work to capture in more detail the full
value and benefit of library activities. This will supplement the quantitative statistical
information that is gathered. This research will seek to evidence the outcomes and impact
of the services that are delivered, especially the well-being and learning benefits and an

overall contribution to the ‘thrive agenda’.

18
Page 36




Section B: Update on actions from previous report

Service Area

Update

Planning permission has been approved for 114 homes across the thee sites. Homes England

The Gateshead Regeneration Partnership (GRP) will provide local employment and supply chain opportunities [} ‘E‘ funding of £550k has also been allocated for the sites.
for Gateshead businesses. In early 2019 GRP construction begins on three housing sites at Kelvin Grove, Ec " E a Preliminary works began on Kelvin Grove in February 2019, with construction due to start in
Rowlands Gill and Whitehills Drive which make best use of previously vacant land and supports, employment g 'g April 2019. Construction of Rowlands Gill and Windy Nook will begin in May 2019.
and local ¢ ity develop “ &
New Food and Beverage unit to be delivered. Capital Programme bid for project to deliver
Delivery of new facilities and improved public spaces at Baitic Quarter for businesses and visitors will help to o E signage to BQ and improve the usability and vibrancy of the public realm through the
create a vibrant business destination and facilities will include a new café, new seating on the Boulevard and Ec I at § g‘ introduction of more seating, cycle parking, planting and exercise equipment.
improved signage. The new facilities will encourage residents and employees into the area, improve local 5 %
spending and promote the Gateshead area as a place to work and visit - a
The Council supported the development and launch of Code Operative - a tech co-op based
at PROTO: The Emerging Technology Centre. Operating as a service co-op, Code Operative is
-U = providing business development, marketing and sales support to its members, providing
E greater stability for freelancers and contract workers and giving them access to wider
Council will explore opportunities to secure wider social and economic benefits for growth in the tech _g economic benefits from growth in the tech sector including a fairer share and distribution of
i B alth. The Co-op has delivered for local charities such as Newcastle and Gateshead
ek na i et | e | 8 [ e e oot i o sy o v
qum",ﬂ by its workers, or similar model. E also running skills workshops and tutorials for employees in the sector and will be launching
~ 2 a crowdfunding campaign in 2019 to raise funding for the development of apps to address
2 societal challenges.
Delivered a wider programme of targeted interventions and events, working with NELEP,
Department of International Trade (DIT), business support agencies and the private sector, to
increase performance, competitiveness and resilience across the business community.
Continued to raise the profile of Gateshead as an investment location, coordinate responses
to mobile investment enquiries and support local businesses to expand through account
E management and planning for growth. | it in the Gateshead ec y will provide
The Council aim to improve the business environment to develop the capacity and accelerate the growth of key 8 sustainable opportunities for employment and growth, supporting the Thrive Agends. During
employment sectors. These include digital technology, advanced manufacturing, health and retail to support g 2018/19 the Council supported 45 businesses to implement sicorsedul kysstasnt grojects
business expansion and retention, increasing the number and quality of jobs available to residents. Activities Economic Investment = and 24 new start-ups; cresting 943 Jobs and safeguanding 218 jobs in Gateshead. This
will include supporting business expansion and retention through account management, working with -E included 1:‘:":3“1 hF.Dimee:"e"t :on“l : ; ‘;“:::5 *hm‘e" ’::":hsmu'wm“ D‘"Pfl Entets by _E’d’t'"l
employer organisations, cluster and supply chain development overseas | ors. FOI. Jecure -So/m ng t rprise
§ Partnership to support the cost of essential enabling infrastructure for the development of

Follinsby Max, part of the Enterprise Zone at Follingsby. which will lead to the creation of
over 1,500 new jobs in the manufacturing and logistics sectors in Gateshead.

19




Service Area

Action Thrive Pledge Update
B The scheme is nearing completion with some sales already confirmed. Handover is scheduled
A new housing development is under way through the Trading Company, with 22 apartments for sale being 2 "‘é for May on the Woodhouse Mews Apartment Conversion (Formerly Derwentside, Swalwell).
developed at the former Derwentside Sheltered Scheme in Swalwell, with completion expected late 2018. é E ﬂ The former Lyndhurst site is being developed as Valley View with sales already secured and
Construction activity also commenced on the former Lyndhurst Site in Beacon Lough. The development will see People and Families =35 completion of the first units expected in July 2019.
36 new family homes being built with completion expected in summer 2019. Both of these developments are E 53
being progressed under the trading name Beacon Living é %
(=1
5 - Progress on the schemes is continuing with all units expected to have been completed by
Council Housing is progressing with work to develop a core and cluster scheme of 14 supported living homes in g i August. Meetings are taking place with prospective Tenants and their carers ahead of there
Winlaton. The development will see a mix of bungalows and apartments, supported by an onsite concierge People and Familles g - s properties being let.
providing support for clients with Learning Disabilities. The development attracted external grant funding of = § 2
over £0.5m from Homes England and completion is forecast to be early summer 2019 § & g
=
& Planning application was submitted in March 2019, External Homes England Grant of £1.8m
sing growth site at Clasper Village has been cleared and is ready for development of 191 homes plus a RE = has been secured to support site remediation works, with construction expected to start in
supg'narket store to improve access to services for local residents. A planning application will be submitted in People and Families 23: : "E g November 2019,
eat{TR019. This site recently attracted an offer of external funding offer to support remediation works on the $ 29 g
site(D S&r
R 8
W
00] €
A planning application for the housing growth site at Bleach Green in Blaydon will be submitted in January 2019 E g Planning approval granted 6.12.18 for 183 homes and demolition of 4 homes. Start on site
by Keepmoat Homes, for 183 homes. Funding from Homes England will help provide 15% affordable homes for People and Families c B delayed due to higher than anticipated ground condition final scheme costs. Forecast start on
the area with work starting on site in March 2019 and supporting local first-time buyers into home ownership 3 -g site June 19. Scheme will provide 15% affordable housing, including 6 bungalows
a
Following the two pilots in Tyne and Wear and Gloucestershire, the Department of Health
In October 2018, the Council will be supporting a month-long Adult Social Care Recruitment Campaign pilot = and Social Care have now launched a National Recruitment Campaign “Every day is different
working with the Department of Health and Social Care to promote careers in social care. The two pilots are - when you care”. The Council will continue to support the campaign locally with the aim of
based in Tyne and Wear and Gloucestershire and will inform a national campaign in early 2019.There are Tackle Inequality E 8 encouraging man paopie to spply to work In socil cane. Any indivicusls who do come
approximately 250 vacancies in the Gateshead social care sector at any one time. Filling these posts will & 'g forward will be supported through Gateshead Works and matched with employers who are
alleviate the pressure on residents relying on Universal Credits = looking to recruit.
Baltic Quarter Land for Sale sites launched at MIPIM 2019 in March by Leader of Council and
requested from developers for schemes containing a mix of housing and employment developments. Mixed o g take forward disposals.
use developments increase population density, encourage more affordable housing (smaller units), allows for & i " 5 g
the creation of plazas, reduce distance between housing and employment, encourage walking and cyding. 8 ‘g
reduce road congestion and encourage retail opportunities. All of these elements will support the Gateshead - 2

area into future sustainability

20




Thrive Pledge

Service Area

S ] The Council developed and submitted a revised ERDF funding application for £5.8m in
3 i‘ November 2018, to support £20m of energy improvements within a project called “A
An ERDF grant application was made for £8m of funding, to support a £16m scheme to deliver sustainable 2 Sustainable Future for Chopwell”, that aims to insulste up t0 800 homes, and install ground
energy and transport improvements to Chopwell. Unfortunately, the application was not successful however, Economic investment g E :::::;a;p;m::dﬁ?:plmr“ sm‘m‘;:‘z:‘:ﬁ;:ﬂ?;:gm:‘nﬁhs
the project scope is being reviewed and revised, and other funding sources explored % E il il s nce late 2019/20.
35
e The agreement to lease process with SMG Europe is drafted and is due to complete on time
& 2
I respec of th Gateshend Quaysdevelopmen, th keyscion avr the st 6 months st secure Ageement | (| E & |May 2015 Workis ongoing regaring marketing the two hotls for the scheme and
to Lease with the key tenant SMG Europe who will operate the new arena and conference centre g *g )
== a
Over the past decade Gateshead Council has led the way in supporting growth of the digital
sector. This has significantly contributed to the North East region’s over all creative sector
growth which has been the highest outside of London since 2010. (DCMS Sectors Economic
Estimates released February 2019: London and the North East were the fastest growing UK
'U regions for DCMS sectors, increasing by 58.0% and 46.1% respectively since 2010. This
QJ compares to an increase of 40.3% in London and 21.4% in the North East for total UK
(@) economy) Gateshead digital tech sector, including PROTO, featured in BQ Live, The Chronicle,
D Bdaily, Northern Insight, North East Times and various North East blogs, including Newcastle
w § Tech Trust and Newcastle Start Up Week. The Council has hosted events including Northern
igital Manufacturing, BBC Digital Sphere Network, Thinking Digital, Creative
Imp&f)e the promotion of Gateshead and support its ambition to be recognised as a business investment g i::eos:r:.‘n?:& GX, CIPR, lnn:v&ate UK, ?nd Dic;:?t.eadem NE as ;;. .k tcchsand games
location and the number one destination for companies developing cutting edge technology, software, and Economic | nt -g meet ups in PROTO with over 1000 busi people act ing opportunities for collaboration,
content through a digital marketing campaign and building on the success of PROTO. A company has been 3 " support/growth, innovation and digitalisation. The PROTO Industry Launch event in
0t 06 CHOE LN COmpotn wiich Wil st Wneninoritly § November was attended by 104 representatives of the regional tech sector and wider
§ industry presenting use cases directly to industry leaders and industry insight. Dynamo, the
- North East industry-led cluster for the tech sector, awarded PROTO the Public Sector Project
of the Year for 2018. To champion the sector, support further inward investment,
entrepreneurship in the sector and promote careers in the tech sector Gathered Council was
instrumental in supporting the establishment of the industry lead NOVA Games cluster
. 5 The first phase of Bus Lane Enforcement has now been introduced at 3 locations - A694, A184
Civil bus lane enforcement was expected in late 2018 with three cameras at Gateshead High Street, the A184 E '; E felling By-pass and the West Central Route. Extension to a second phase of sites is now in
(West Central Route, behind the bus station) and the A184 Felling Bypass (westbound). It is anticipated that ing Co ities a8 ‘é preparation.
lane enforcement will lead to a reduction in road traffic and pedestrian accidents. The outcome of improved Supporting Communi 'g gea
road enforcement will be known at the end of 2018/19 and continue on into 2019/20 2 E g

21




Section C: Performance Overview

(Performance trends are measured against the position at same time last year —

September 18 to March 19, unless stated)

Most Recent
Indicator Thrive Pledge Service Director Lead Target 2020 Performance 2018/19| Direction of Travel Comments and Actions
(unless stated)
-mmmmw.wmzsmmwwmmaamumm
g in full time ed
) -mmzouma;mmwwommmmmuf head's working age population will
EI01 - The number of peopie of working age in 4 : 127,799 127900 performance has i iy Aol
Gateshead aged 16-64 (2017/18) Declined
*The net number of homes liable for Council Tax within the Borough has grown by 0.26% (241 homes) since last year
(93,278)
=it should be noted that this indicator reports on the change in the number of homes liable for Council Tax in Gateshead.
_ a3518 =Delivering against this target will prove challenging due to the high costs of developing land in head and a weaker
EN2 - Increase overall housing supply Hutchinson 96,167 (2017/12) improved housing market.
_U *The rate of long term empty properties has decreased from last year and is now on target.
- Proportion of the Borough total housing stock 1.459 =This may be a consequence of continued service activity to tackle empty homes, and the imposition of a Counal Tax
has been empty for 6 months or more at 31st ] Hutchinson 1.19% (2017/18) Improved premium on long - term empty homes.
March each year
D
-h *93% of new build affordable homes completed during 2017/18 were built on former Council Owned Land.
o -.&Muer:shamhwebeenwwwwm:mmummMWWWGnm
Pl g Policy requires 15% affordable h g on develog dﬁalimMuMlm
EIO4 - The of new affordabl ies that " . 204 &4 — cmsmumwmmmmmm of p [ ial land and land mining usage.
mmamdlnauefumnﬂmmanr e (2017/18) mp
There continues to be good progress with the ber of ises inc ing year on year since 2013 with the current
level at 5,185 [1]. &umhubu‘&mﬂvwsmwsﬂlwprﬂmdnmm
The overall annual business birth figure of 1,035 exceeds pr levels. , there were also 745 business
deaths in the period.
‘activity will continue to develop a diverse economy with the aim of delivering increases in the business base  This will be
achieved by:-
N . L L Providing significant i through the Capital Programme.
EI05 - The of P n 5350 5,185 Improved *Ensuring a range of high quality economic locations are available and attractive to the market including Gateshead

Quays, WMMMWIWM

WMQWMMMMWWN#:WUHMNM
*Di ifying and g the rural ac ¥ by supportng local businesses and growth in lesure, culture and tourism.

[1] Busi ister and Employ
[ZIMSWONS\.ZM?

Survey, ONS 2017 [NOMIS website)

22




Thrive Pledge

‘Most Recent
Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)

Comments and Actions.

EI06 - The number of people economically active and |
in employment expressed as a percentage of all
peopie aged 16-64

73.20%

=Employment rates both
quarters.
F T

ily and locaily ator d record highs and have been above target in all four

F well with/out-perform the wider N.E region (70.8%) but as would be expected still lags
the GB rate which stands at 75.1%.
= Whilst longer term economic forecasts remain good, maintaining current levels of perfi
to the immediate and shorter-term uncertanties and implications of Brexit

due

& may bec

E107 - ECOnomic Actwity Rate - Percentage of all
people aged 16-64

Hrfotmaue has

*Major changes to the welfare system fi i tion of full-service Universal Credit and record high
ploy rﬂnm‘ﬂumdmm:mmmm:wm

Economic Activity Rate.

*The significant changes are causing the rate to fag behind target but even 5o it remained steady for the first three
memm-ld\ehnm

- d stands by haif way b the North East average (74.8%) and the GB rate of 78.5%.

EI08 - ﬂum«wﬂlmﬂnmwh

£533.30

improved

oC f s have seen pressure remain on this indicator.
-mmhmMmumummmumnmmmmmm
regional figure (£511 60) from £8.40 last year, now down to £3.70.

*The gap to the national rate (£571.10) which is fuelled by higher starting points and wage inflation in the South East is

considerably higher at £63.20.
*The measure is though subject to wide fluctuation due to being obtained via a survey of a relatively small number of
residents.

U
Q)
%s- higher skl levels - I;.ll;;l;mpsl-! o,
N
H

37.80%

-mmadpammammnar this indicator slowly recovered and is now again exceeding its Target.

behind both the N.E (39.5%) and some way off the GB figure (46 1%) but this indicator is
quum“nswmhudwmwpdmﬁmmwﬂmm
*Going forward uncertainty over Brexit and its implications could lead to at least some short to mid-term instability.

EI10 - The number of jobs in head

93,000

performance has
Declined

*The ber of ! in jobs in h ‘Mbmhmuﬂmﬂmmm:mm
mmm;smdmv [1] across 3 number of sectors where and pol inty has impacted
on business confidence.

*in terms of employees in jobs, Retail is the largest empioy sector inG at 20.8%. The nexx largestis
mwmwmummWnuﬂ [1} muﬁwm-uhbwmﬁ's

wpioyer base has served it well during recent do to shocks with the area not
mmmmammuammdmm ploy facturing in head
remains strong.

*Gateshead has a strong job density figure (number of jobs in an area divided by its resick rking age of
onanulmmmmwwonwmhmummwdoum Thisisa
direct reflection of the b s wgths in major employ sites, dy Team Valley and Metrocentre; along with
hmwwdwmwm

*The spiit of full to part time employees in Gateshead is 67% to 33% [1]. The strength of local Retail and Health sectors is

ident here and ially the fiexibility of their working patterns.

*in head and modern € practices are changing with a rise in casual and agency work, zero hours,
short hour's contracts, the rise of digital platforms and ‘enforced” self-employment affecting many. Therefore whilst the

igth of the labour is built on fiexibility there also neads to be a focus on the quality of work as well as the
quantity of jobs.

23




Ingicator Thrive Pledge Service Director Lead Target 2020 Performance Durection of Trawel Comments and Achons.
(unies: sated)
-ﬂnmﬂmmﬂuwnﬂ_ oy "-l-..' inwhich on st up,
locate, invest and grow to stimulste privete sector investment. These have SLPPOrTIng inwar ment, seif
B11-The o B . &1 Performance has  |STPOYMENT BNC seCtor Seveiopment
sy s 3559 | gconomic imvestment | ancrew nsrznen 70 P e S ooz -he pecantage of zef empioyes has reduced from T TR 6 1% )
«in the first six moneis of 2015-15, seven people were supported Dy the Councl to SeT up 8 DusSiness or to become seif
lempioyed.
+The medan gross weeky Jmy Of full Tme workers ir: Gateshead has INCeasec ShEhtly DU rEMENS CONSiTtenty Iower
[than national levels. In 2018 the =a0 to pay to the Engiand averags was £33 lower 1)
=This eis ject to wide fluctuation due to being obtained vis 3 Survey of @ relatively small Pumber of
El12- Gross weekly pay of jobs in Gateshead Economic Investmemn Anarew Mearzhall 320 £477 .80 improved g
At vty moving forwerc will continue to focus on NCreasng the NUMDer and Quality of jobs N Gateshesd.
[£] Mesian Gross Wieskly Pay of Full Time Workers, Annusi Survey of Hours and Earmings. ONS [NOMES website]
=Gatesnesd had seen simost contnual yesr on year " the of thooe r with no formal
jquaifications 0 was aporoadching the target alDen = 8 Siow rme.
-U =Thiz latest snnual figure is therefore 8 setbedck &5 tThe nUMDer of rescents in this cohort has risen from 10,400to 13,100
QJ jand the percentage rate has gone Lp by 2%
(=} = Cther than s demographic Shift reisted to = Nigher than sverage sl in the P dil
@nr:unm;;m::mrgi > Performance has  |[STS"NE Mghe” leves skl ; J—— peop € he mbour market e there i3 no spparent resson
u‘!“.‘m b Economic investment Anarew Marzhall s.00% 10.30% : 'U?i-ﬂ'lpm it ) it i . )
“l . - =1 is hoped that 85 this indcator is Serived from an annusl Survey thet it is only the sampie that is befvng this.
msmuMEMMwumwmnmwmwﬁswu
Inow falien the (NES &hofr with no qualificetions ).
.qu:mnmnmmﬂliwslw{?m
~Gatechesd had seen an 3IMOSt CONtINUSI yEIr ON year iNCTease in thoce residents with NVQ leve! 3 and sbove over the
mummmw:ﬁgus“am
=Uipon i JEaton there i NO Signi reason for this other than Craphical crangs with a fall in the
of rezs ployed in ions requinng figher shills POSsiDly Gue O retirements and peopie
B34 - The percertage of peopie §ving in the dorough| lesving the workforce.
2zed 1554 who Cent®, tremzeves Faing - 7% 28 80% Ferformance he2 |, v iz hoped that as this incicator iz DEZES ON BN SRR TUrvey it Con be expiBined Dy iz Bnd the Zample &3 8 reisted
quslfcaton equivaient to 3t lesst an NVQ Leve: 3 Oadisnd indicator has shown similer abnormal” results.
=Last year Goteshesd performed Detter then the regions! figures in this incicator, Dut these resufts hgve seen it fall Deck
to treiing Geteshesc 49 B MEm 32 1%
+The borough now ag' s further behind the continusily Mmorowng GB aversgs of 37.2%
«Piease note this figure iz we sre muzsrg 2 wizitor asta from SAGE Gateshead
mwmmmmmpwmmmmtm The majorty of stes
m:mmmmmmwwnﬂ-wﬂmmmmﬂMSMm&n
=z 1888 992° mwmwm. Centre. from 426,385 n 2017 to
B3V by o w Univey dumey e p— N 546,479 in 2015 and for Gate Seacium i from 124,223 t0 173,452
816 - mqpmmqmw . 5 N ; »re =Owverall 2017/18 performance has shown a smail 3t pOStive increase when compared to 2016/17 with thres of the four)
main gk Tacking inequaity | Anneliese Hutchinson % (2047/12) improved zut incicator: mesting the 2018/20 targets zet.
= == " sThere is 3 small decressed in the BCESS t employment curing the dey from 63% in 2046717 t0 39.1%in 2017/18 end it
vd Dty nmw . " = .
e fevening) M Tacking mequalty | Anneliese Huatdhinson 2% {;:g;'] Improwed |is consioeres that s sigit change is likely to changes in Service operator imetabies and the ieve! of recuction does not
ElL8- Accessibiity to Pudic Transport C) Access to 4 = 35.4% Perfcrmance has
key empioymert (Saytime Rackifog tnacpaity, | Amasiisss: jichinscn - {2017/18) Dedined
219 - Acceszibility to Public Transport D) Acoess to " R . a7%
key empioyment |evening) —— — a% (2017/13) -




Thrive Pledge

Service Director Lead

Most Recent
Performance 2018/19
(unless stated)

Direction of Travel

PFO1- The percentage of homes in the highest energy
efficency bands (S4P>65)

People and Families

Peter Udall

56.53% (Six Monthly
18/19)

*4 large-scale project is currently underway comprising 7 high-rise blocks of flats, the Gateshead HEIGHTS project aims to
deliver energy efficiency improvements in each block through a variety of measures:-
—mmmhm:wm

=installing a © b Er source heat pump system

*instailing a communal combined heat and power (CHP) system
*Upgrades to the electricity supply network, where required, to accommodate the new heat and/or power plant

=Full window and Roof Replacement Scheme

It is anticipated that thesa improvements will result in reduced residents’ energy costs, lower carbon emissions and an
increase in the average SAP rating for the 621 properties included in this scheme. The results of these improvements
should be reflected in the figures to be reported at year end.

PFO2 - People Killed or Seriously Injured (ksi) in road
traffic collisions - percentage change over base year

mo)
Q)

People and Families

Anneliese Hutchinson

25.20%

Performance has
Declined

*This performance shows that there has been a reduction in the number of people killed or seriously injured on
Gateshead's roads from the baseline to the current reporting year. This is a reduction on 2017/18's performance and it is|
better than the target for 2018/19.

=This reduction is similar to that seen in other parts of the region, and is generally attributed to increasing vehicle safety
measures, safer roads and longer term road safety trends influenced by education, enforcement and engineering work.
-‘rherewuadulgeinmmwmn&nmidmummm:mﬁwwm
'Whilst this new sy will imp mﬁmfammmm&amencm
ﬂusdlmgehsrmﬂudlnmamfcnlmlmn i 1l of approxii y 15% from 2015 to 2016. Due
to the calculation of this indicator, these ch are still i ing the results.

«Q
QB-L' dren killed or y injured {KS!) in road|
MMM-MMMMFI

w

People and Famslies

anneliese Hutchinson

30.82%

=This performance shows that there has been a reduction in the number of children (ages 0-15) kifled or senously injured |
'on Gateshead's roads from the baseline to the current reporting year. However, this is worse than 2017/18"s
rfi e, and is below the target set for 2018/19.

Perf: & has
Declined

-ﬂureumswwumsmmmmdummdu ibuted to in g vehicle safety
measures, mmmmpmmmmmMawmmmwm

PFOS- Number of households accepted as homeless

People and Families

Peter Udall /

TGHC

&3 (Six Monthly
18/19)

*The verified data for quarter 1 & 2 in isolation has been used in this report. mquw:&alusbmpmd&dw
MHCLG and is pending verification. The service has seen 2,322 new h holds” app: hash
2018/19. wmmmmmnmmmmumumdwm

data would have included a ber of repeat h sholds. legislation is now interpreted to achieve longer,

d from

People and Families

Peter Udall /

TGHC

316 (Six Monthly
18/19)

positive outcomes for all homeless dients. mmmd“wmmm“mm
(options either in supported accommodation, private sector properties or council accommodation.

25



Thrive Pledge

Target 2020

Maost Recent
Performance 2018/19|
(unless stated)

Direction of Travel

5C01 - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse |
recycling and compasting

31.10%

Perfromance has
Declined

The capture of material in the blue bin senice sees inued p = ds on the cap of paper in the inner
box and whilst there is some gr inthec gl age, not gh to offset the drop in paper.

*More generally, there has been further scrutiny introduced throughout the supply chain on the quality of materials
cdhndﬂmmmm“mdmmmmmmmm:ddmmu
contractors and by resource increases in extracting contaminants whilst the ials are p

s8¢ y raw puts whilst lower in tonnage terms are of a higher quality. mmdﬂiﬁhahdm
stagnation in recyding rates nationally, with some Councils seeing actual drops.

=4 small trial to separate not just paper, but also cardboard from the other matenials began in February 2019 and we are
*Overall, as described above the Qtr 3 penod indicated an overall improvement in capture of recyclables from October to
December but not ugh to the o dp n the first half year.

=4 companson of the first three quarters of the year indicated a reduction of 544 tonnes of recyclables with a
corresponding increase in overall h/hold waste generation of 1115 tonnes.
-ddlmMmdMMMmtmumamwwemﬂ

saw growth in ge for the first three quarters. We are g that waste growth will end the year
amu\da%m,
*The lack of significant capital and i to imp
increases are unlikely.
*Increase in tonnages of general waste collected along with the fall in recycling and garden waste collected has resulted
in the reduction. A trial has commenced aiming to increase the capture of paper and cardboard by collecting these
separately from the remainder of the recycling and data is currently being recorded.

MMmmmmswmwmwmﬂummmmm
The team are continuing to work with £ and h at Al points
mmmm:ﬂnmmmmmm Imasldmnfsocdrmdnfur

gular recycling iges and work with partner authorities to getout a i ageis

L,

vt abed

SCO2 - The number of library visitors per 1000

population.

5100

pPerfromance has
Dedlined

*The use of libraries iy has d d and in head the level of library usage remains good at 915,823
m{ﬂuwmmdmn]buhsﬂmnamdemmm#u

*Comparative performance data for other library services regionally and nationally shows that in 2017/18 the Gateshead
mmmlmmmmmm-pudmmmwnmwmw
authorities ily. S0, although there is a d parfi in y 3t a very
high level. mm‘wmmmwilmhmmmhmzo
-mwmmwMadeMhdlmﬂmumm
programme of activities for children and families. These activities include rhy for toddlers and p , class
visits by local school, mm“dmhmmiﬂmMammdmmefwm

= The total ber of at progr n P - d from 42,002 to
43,505 in 2018-19

*The Council works dosely with the volunteer associations that operate the libraries day to day in the following
locations; Dunston, Felling, Low Fell, Rowlands Gill, Ryton, Whickham and Winlaton. Analysis shows that on transfer from
Coundil to volunteer operation the level of business can drop by approximataly 30 - 40% This is a significant contribution
to the reduction in overall performance in 2018-19 for this indicator. Volunteer operated libraries do offer a good range
of service and develop a range of activities as they become established.

TI01 - Percentage of people who feel they can
influence decisions in their locality. People feel

engaged and consulted.

Tackling nequality

33%

33% (17/18)

=There is no data for this indicator for 2018-19 as the relevant questions were not asked in the 2018 survey

TI02- Perc

get on well together in their local area

aof le who beli

5! | i o

Tackling inequality

91%

*Residents were asked within the 2018 Residents Survey if they think that people in their local area usually get on well
together, and 91% said yes [always or most of the time). This figure is the same as found in the 2016 survey.

TIO3- The percentage of people surveyed which are
invoived in formal voluntesring

takes

=Overall, levels of regular volunteering are slightly higher than in 2016. 60%% of ng by survey resp

place within Gateshead, though this has dropped by 11 percentage points since 2016. However, Mvdm
elsewhers in Gateshead has increased by 8 percentage points to 18%. A further 22% voli '
Yul\gplq:hmthlmIwymudmmuHrbdﬂwﬂnmlmwvdmmum




Indicator Thrive Pledge Service Director Lead Target 2020 Performance 2018/19| Direction of Travel Comments and Actions
[unless stated)
=Looking at how many organisations receive funding through the Thrive Fund is a useful way of illustrating how the
The ar of wob andc Council provides practical support to VCS organisations, as opposed to the contractual relationship the Council has with a
N . ) i ber of larger organisations from the sector that are commissioned to deliver services.
mmmmﬂhhmlﬂm Tackling inequality lan Stevenson 131 174 Improved «During 2018/19 3 | ber of small ¢ ity group rved 1 Com: ; - the .
| year
*The ARCH sy was d issioned in October 2018 therefore the way hate cime information is recorded needs to
TI05 - The total number of hate - related incidents ; No Targets Set 382 be completely changed. There is unf ¥ no data available for 2018/19
reported to the ARCH Hate Crime Reporting System | 1 200InG inequality | Anneliese Hutchinson| i iy 62 (april to Oct 18) e
+The target for this indicator was to maintain performance of 59% The engagement rate for 2018/19 is 57%, shightly less
that the figure reported in 2017/18.
TI06 - The total number of clients engaged as a =it must be noted that the domestic abuse service changed part way through the year and the senace now works with
percentage of the total number of referrals received = ~ & ha NO Targets Set 57 Performance has MMBMMMMWM&MWMMWM
by the independent Domestic Viclence Advocacy e d Maintain 59% Declined *The changes to the remit of the service mean that there has also been an increase in the ber of i wved
Service There were 1,732 referrais received in 2018/19, compared to 1.353 in the previ 12 This rep an
increase of 28% (=379 referrals).
*Although no target has been set for this indicator, perf e has deteri d when compared to the p year.
There has been a 4% increase in ded crime in shead in 2018/19 ¢ ed to 2017/18. This is lower than the
" ¢ s rk ) g figure reported across the Northumbria Police Force area, where recorded crime increased by 6% in 2018/19.
- The o - i A i + h None Set 21403 " has « In total there have been 21,404 crimes recorded in the 12 months to March 2019, B63 more than at the same point in
-U Gateshead = & & Declined 2018,
Q
(-D *No target has been sat for this indicator, but perf e has imp d when comp i to the pr year. End of
year figures show there has been a 5.21% reduction in the ber of ASB incid in Gateshead reported to
_h Northumbria Police during 2018/19 when compared to 2017/18.
m =although performance has improved, there are still areas that are vulnerable to incidents of ASB. ASB is also an area of
cmmmmmmmmwmmmmmmmukhgmma
y for par to address in 2019/20.
TI08- The total number of ASB incidents in i } i _ ﬂmhavebamal!smodumnpcﬂeﬁmnoﬂimmmlmdmmlﬂlsmwndmoa?zdmmﬂhs
Gateshead reported to Northumbria Police Tackling inequality | Anneliese Hutchinson None Set 6,135 improved Three quarters of incidents were dlassed as non-youth ASB, the same proportion as in 2017/18. Despite youth-related
ASB accounting for only a quarter of incidents reported, this is an issue often cited by residents as having a significant
impact on feelings of safety in their neigh s and frequently raised at resi ings and councillor
Surgeries.
*The target for this indicator is to maintain the figure of 72% achieved in 2015/16. In total, 56% of respondents to the
sﬁmwmﬂmmwuwmmwdemwmmmﬂm
Performance has theref; d. This is disappointing, particularty given partners’ efforts to engage with.
TI09 - The proportion of " tothe bers of the ¢ ity through the world café events that took place across Gateshead during 2018/19.
"H1ow misch do you o d ‘w“m sVariance against the target is -22%. Itis not known why confidence in senvices has deteriorated, but this is a trend
following statement: The police and local Council are|  Tackling inequality | Anneliese Hutchinson Nﬂ_lﬁrm_ Set 56% Per . e has ed across the Northumbria Police force area. The figure for Gateshead is currently the lowest figure recorded
Maintain 72% Declined mmmﬂdumm

issues that matter in the area”

=Variance in performance is -16%. 1t is not known why confidence in services has deteriorated, but this is a trend
experiencad across the Northumbria Police force area. The figure for Gateshead is currently the lowest figure recorded
in the Northumbria Police force area

27




Most Recent

against total amount of energy used within the
Borough of Gateshead

{Six Months 2018/19)

Iindicator Thrive Pledge Service Director Lead Target 2020 Performance 2018/19| Direction of Travel Comments and Actions
(unless stated)
=The target for this indicator is to maintain the figure of 98% achieved in 2015/16. In total, 95% of respondents to the
|safer Communities Survey in 2018/19 feel very or fairly safe living in their neighbourhood. Performance has therefore
TI10 - The proportion of respondents to the question " ) No Targets Set performance has |deteriorated slightly.
"ow safe do you feel living in your neighbourhood |  12C1Ing Inequality | Anneliese Hutchinson| i i 075 e Dedined
=Although performance has deteriorated, the figure of 95% & very positive and is only slightly below the target.
Furthermore, it is on par with the Northumbria average for this measure
111 - Number of G L y who e * Data based on the last Sport England Active Lives Survey, which indicates that 60.6% of the shead aduit ilat
' lly acti Tackling inequaiity Lindsay Murray the 60.60% improved was physically active compared to 58.8% in the previous year
Ti12 - Number of p— * Data based on the last Sport England Active Lives Survey, which indicates that 25 7% of the head adult populati
- Tackding inequality Lindsay Murray the 25.70% Improved was physically inactive compared to 28.7% in the previous year. This equates to 42,900 individuals.
= As the survey data has only been collected over the last 3 years, Sport England recommend that trend analysis should
be deferred until further data is collected
* Actual greenhouse gas emissions from Gateshead Council operations are 4 8% lower than last year, and 38.4% lower
than in 2007/08.
WTD1- The CO2 reduction from Loca! Authorit 38.4% Reduction *Progress has been made with Gas consumption in buildings decreasing by 0.7% and electricity consumption decreasing
” r ‘Working Together Peter Udall 50% improved by 5.1%.
Operations. Part A) Reports Actual Figure (2017/18)
)
93 ther corrected have fell 6.1% on last year and are now 40 2% down on 2007/08.
:d;m.n.cmmmm“m y * Streetlights electricity usage fell by a further 6.7% as the effect of further energy efficency lighting replacement took
jons. Part B) Weather Corrected ing T udall 0% 4025 oved effort
Wﬂs. Reports ‘Working Together Peter (2017/13) mpr
Figure
I
[@)) *30% of the installed renewable energy capadity is attributed to landfill gas and electnaty generators, with the
inder comprised of scale, building specific ble energy
WTO03 - The percentage of renewable energy *Gateshead is producing 10.6% of its electricity from renewable sources (landfill gas generators and solar panel
generated locally, within the borough of Gateshead, ) 2.1% installations)
Working Together Peter Udall 16.80% *0.07% of heat is generated from renewable sources. This figure will increase when the 10 customers for the District

Energy Scheme are accounted for next financial year.

28




Agenda Item 6

Communities and Place
= Gateshead Overview and Scrutiny Sub Committee

Council _——— 24 June 2019
TITLE OF REPORT: Community Safety Board — Partnership Plan 2019/20

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington
Strategic Director - Communities and Environment

Summary

This report provides Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee with a
copy of the statutory Partnership Plan for Gateshead Community Safety Board, which
provides details of the strategic priorities and workstreams for the next 12 months.

1 Introduction

1.1 This report provides Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee
with a copy of the statutory Partnership Plan that has been produced on behalf
of the Community Safety Board in Gateshead for delivery in 2019/20.

2 Background

2.1 Gateshead Community Safety Board has a statutory duty (under the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998) to produce an annual intelligence-led Strategic Assessment
and Partnership Plan. The Strategic Assessment is an analysis of the key
crime and disorder issues impacting on the Borough to help assist in identifying
priority areas. As part of the process, we are required to consult with residents
and local community groups to ensure that the priorities that we have chosen
appropriately reflects local need. Following a public consultation exercise, a
Partnership Plan is then produced which sets out what the agreed priorities will
be for the forthcoming year.

2.2 InJanuary 2019, the Board received a comprehensive overview of the Strategic
Assessment findings and agreed to undertake public consultation on its draft
priorities for 2019/20. This process was carried out over a six-week period and
ended in March 2019.

3. Consultation

3.1 The consultation exercise, an online questionnaire using Gateshead Council’s
ViewPoint, sought views in relation to crime and disorder issues, feelings of
safety and to comment on the proposed strategic priorities. The consultation
has elicited a significant number of responses, with more than 900 replies over
the six-week period.

3.2  Analysis of the responses highlight:
e 41% of respondents felt that their neighbourhood has got worse in the last
12 months. We know crime has increased steadily over the last three-years
— with levels rising by a further 4% (+863 additional crimes) on last year.

Page 47



3.3

3.4

3.5

e However, despite the feeling that their neighbourhood has got worse, most
respondents still report feeling safe, with 76% of people say they feel very or
fairly safe in their neighbourhood.

e 60% of respondents stated they do not feel anti-social behaviour or crime
are specific problems, which may suggest national headlines impacting.

e Over a third of respondents believe partner agencies (including Gateshead
Council and Northumbria Police) work well together to tackle the issues that
matter to them.

In terms of the proposed strategic priority areas, anti-social behaviour was
ranked as most important followed by domestic abuse and substance misuse.
Fewer respondents felt hate crime was a priority. The reason for this could be
because it's an issue that affects a very small proportion of the community. In
addition, environmental issues such as such as fly-tipping, graffiti, dog-fouling
and littering continued to be identified as key concerns — all of which are visible
incidents which impact on feelings of safety and perceptions of Council/Police
to tackle issues and is linked to the wider anti-social behaviour agenda.

There are no references made within the consultation to issues such as County
Lines, Modern Day Slavery and Knife Crime — and yet, we know these issues
are closely intertwined in community safety activity. These areas will be picked
up as part of the work around anti-social behaviour and substance misuse.

Analysis of the qualitative data highlighted information which has been shared
with Gateshead Operational Tasking Group and Missing, Sexually Exploited
and Trafficked Group for action (e.g. hotspot locations).

Strategic Priorities
Five strategic themes were confirmed for 2019/20:

PRIORITY: Anti-Social Behaviour & Environmental Crime
Tackling issues of anti-social behaviour and environmental crime
continues to be one of the biggest areas of concern identified by
our residents.

PRIORITY: Domestic Abuse
Domestic abuse continues to increase year-on-year and the effect
that it has on individuals, their families, their children and wider
society is profound.

PRIORITY: Substance Misuse — Reducing the Harms
We know that drug misuse causes significant problems for local
communities — and recognise that we need to do more to be able
to restrict its supply.

PRIORITY: Hate Crime, Tension Monitoring and Community Cohesion
We will continue to raise awareness of hate crime and provide
relevant support/guidance to victims as well as monitoring local
tensions to ensure strong, cohesive and integrated communities.

PRIORITY: Preventing Violent Extremism (Terrorism)
The threat of terrorism continues to be ever-present. We intend to
raise awareness of, and safeguard, vulnerable persons who have
the potential to be drawn into this area.

Page 48



4.2

4.3

These are the areas where the Board felt that it could collectively make a bigger
impact by working together. It is important to note that whilst the Board has
chosen to focus on these priorities — our partners will continue to tackle crime
and disorder issues identified within their own operating practices. The Board
also remains flexible enough to be able to respond proactively to emerging risks
and threats not linked to these priority areas.

Action Plans

Tailored action plans will be produced under each priority area which will set
out the partnership work and activities that will be delivered over the next 12
months to make Gateshead a place where everyone can thrive. Lead partners
were identified by the Board and they are responsible for ensure action plans
are working effectively and are required to feedback to the Board in relation to
key achievements, gaps and barriers. The lead for each strategic priority is:

Priority Area Lead Organisation (identified by Board)

Anti-Social Behaviour Northumbria Police

Domestic Abuse NewcastleGateshead Clinical Commissioning Group

Harms from Substance Misuse | Northumbria Police

Hate Crime et al. Gateshead Community Rehabilitation Company

Preventing Violent Extremism Gateshead Council — Community Safety

5
6.1

6.2

6.3

Partnership Plan 2019/20

The Partnership Plan 2019/20 has been included in Appendix and provides the
headline details of some activity that has been undertaken over the last twelve-
months to keep residents safe. It provides some context issues to the Board,
details some of the demand on Community Safety services within the Borough
as well as setting out how we monitor delivery over the next 12 months.

The Board is statutorily required to "publish the Partnership Plan in the local
area, bringing it to the attention of as many different groups or persons within
the area, as is reasonable”. Like in previous years, copies will be available
electronically via Council and partner websites and hardcopies will be circulated
to key stakeholders (including Police and Crime Commissioner).

It is important to note some of the strategic themes/priorities have strong links
to work overseen by other statutory Boards (e.g. Safeguarding Adults, Local
Safeguarding Children and Health and Wellbeing Boards) and will require a co-
ordinated approach to ensure actions are delivered collaboratively.

Northumbria Police and Crime Plan 2017-20

The Community Safety Board, has a statutory duty to have "due regard to the
priorities set out within the local Police and Crime Plan 2017-20, produced by
the Police and Crime Commissioner. For reassurance, when developing our
Partnership Plan, we have tried, where possible, to ensure we replicate similar
themes to those identified in the Commissioner’s Plan.

Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Partnership Plan will be formally scrutinised through the Communities and
Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee (as set out in the Local Government
Act 2000 and associated regulations) and update reports will be presented over
the next twelve-months (as per the annual workplan 2019/20).

Page 49




8 Recommendations
8.1  The Committee is asked to:
(i) Comment on the report;
(i) Agree to receive regular updates on actions undertaken in relation to the
strategic priorities (as per the OSC Workplan 2019/20).

Contact: Adam Lindridge Ext: (0191) 433 3243

* Appendix 1 — Partnership Plan 2019/20

Page 50



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

Page 1

FRONT COVER

Gateshead Community Safety Board
Partnership Plan 2019/20

Committed to tackling community safety issues that matter to local people.
[Logos — Gateshead Council, Northumbria Police, Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service, National

Probation Service, Northumbria Community Rehabilitation Company, Newcastle Gateshead Clinical
Commissioning Group, The Gateshead Housing Company)

Page 2

OUR VISION

Community safety is a key priority...

...by putting people and families at the heart of everything we do, we are confident we can work
together and fight for a better future for Gateshead, making it a place where everyone can thrive.

Page 3
STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 2019/20
We have identified the following themes that will be prioritised for 2019/20:

e Anti-Social Behaviour
Tackling issues of anti-social behaviour and environmental crime continues to be one of the
biggest areas of concern identified by Gateshead residents.

e Domestic Abuse
Domestic abuse continues to have a detrimental impact on individuals, families, children and
wider society.

e Harms from Substance Misuse
The harms caused by drug and alcohol misuse continued to cause significant problems for
vulnerable persons, communities and places within Gateshead.

e Hate Crime, Tensions and Community Cohesion
We will continue to raise awareness of hate crime and provide relevant support/guidance to
victims as well as monitoring local tensions to ensure we engender cohesive and integrated
communities.

e Preventing Violent Extremism
The threat of terrorism continues to be ever-present. We need to continue to work
collectively to safeguard vulnerable persons who have the potential to be drawn into this
area.

These are the areas where we feel we can collectively make a bigger impact by working together.

It is important to note that whilst the Board has chosen to focus on these priorities — our partners
will continue to tackle crime and disorder issues identified within their own operating practices.

Page 51



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

The Board also remains flexible enough to be able to respond proactively to emerging risks and
threats not linked to these priority areas.

Action Plans

Tailored action plans are produced under each priority area which sets out the partnership work and
activities that we will deliver over the next 12 months to make Gateshead a place where everyone
can thrive.

Page 4

WHAT IS GATESHEAD COMMUNITY SAFETY BOARD?

Gateshead Community Safety Board is a collection of statutory agencies working together to reduce
crime and anti-social behaviour across the Borough. The Board’s key role is to actively lead on the
development of strategies relating to crime and crime reduction and, taking into account issues
raised by local residents and communities, decide what actions can be taken collectively to keep
people safe.

The Community Safety Board has identified a series of priorities that we can work on together to
keep people safe and achieve the best outcomes for individuals, families and communities.

The Partnership is made up of several partner agencies involved in promoting public safety, reducing
anti-social behaviour and crime. In the Gateshead, those responsible authorities are:

e Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council

e Northumbria Police

¢ Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group

¢ Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service

¢ National Probation Service

¢ Northumbria Community Rehabilitation Company

¢ The Gateshead Housing Company

We also work closely with other relevant partner agencies, the voluntary and community sector, the
business sector and residents.

Gateshead Community Safety Board is also committed to working closely with the Police and Crime
Commissioner and, where possible, tries to align its strategic priorities with those identified within
the Northumbria Police and Crime Plan.

Page 5

PARTNERSHIP PLAN 2019/20

The Community Safety Partnership Plan has been developed to provide the local community with an
overview of our recent achievements — and sets out the priorities that the partnership has identified
for the next 12 months. The Partnership Plan is reviewed annually to ensure our work remains
effective and that our priorities continue to be relevant to local needs.

The Plan offers an opportunity for all partners to work together towards one common purpose, to
ensure Gateshead continues to become safer and stronger.

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT 2018

Each year, the Board carries out a Strategic Assessment. The purpose of a Strategic Assessment is to
provide knowledge and understanding of community safety issues to the members of the Board.
This has been done through intelligence analysis to identify the emerging priorities by considering
the patterns, trends and shifts relating to community safety. Additionally, it includes a performance

Page 52



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

assessment of how far the partnership has achieved its previous priorities and an update of those
issues that the local community consider to be emerging priorities.

The Strategic Assessment for 2018 identified the following priorities:

1 Anti-Social Behaviour

2 Domestic Abuse

3 Harms from Substance Misuse

4 Hate Crime, Tension and Community Cohesion
5 Preventing Violent Extremism

Page 6

DEMAND FOR COMMUNITY SAFETY SERVICES

On an average day in Gateshead, there are...

166 separate incidents reported to the Police

58 crimes recorded by the Police

1.5 cases subject to legal and formal action by The Gateshead Housing Company
Three ASB cases opened by The Gateshead Housing Company

Four high-risk domestic abuse referrals to the Council IDVA Service

15 fly tips reported

On an average week in Gateshead, there are...

21 high-risk domestic abuse victims referred to the Council IDVA Service

20 burglaries to homes and 22 incidents of car crime

Seven hate crimes taking place

37 incidents of rowdy or inconsiderate behaviour

19 deliberate secondary fires attended by Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service
18 presentations to Accident and Emergency suffering assault-related injuries

7.5 cases subject to legal and formal action by The Gateshead Housing Company
22 ASB cases opened by The Gateshead Housing Company

On an average month in Gateshead, there are...

379 incidents of domestic violence reported to Police

119 reports of youth-related disorder

10 deliberate primary fires taking place

Two deaths because of drug misuse

95 ASB cases are opened by The Gateshead Housing Company

81 complaints to the Private Sector Housing team

15 Customer Assessment Tools completed by The Gateshead Housing Company
91 deliberate fires attended by Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Service

730 violence against the person offences reported to police

77 reports linked to neighbour disputes

Last year in Gateshead, there were...

9% increase in recorded crime — an additional 8 crimes for every 1,000 residents
Just under 6,000 incidents of anti-social behaviour reported to Police

9,500+ victims of crime identified

5,400+ offenders (1800+ linked to two or more crimes)

1,805 people in treatment

520 people in treatment for alcohol

374 Customer Assessment Tools completed by The Gateshead Housing Company

Page 53



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

Page 7-9

KEY ACTIVITY/ACHIEVEMENTS

This section provides a snapshot of some of the key activity carried out by Community Safety
partners in Gateshead in the last 12 months:

Domestic Abuse

1.

Completed a Domestic Homicide Review into the high-profile case of Alice Ruggles with several
recommendations to safeguard victims of domestic abuse and stalking.

Set up a new integrated Domestic Abuse Team and operating model to improve our support to
victims of domestic abuse.

Northumbria Police launched a dedicated Cyber-Stalking Unit.

Embedded a Domestic Abuse worker in Accident and Emergency to identify and provide support
to domestic abuse victims at an earlier stage.

Continued to work closely with Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to support delivery
of a 'Whole Systems Approach to Domestic Abuse' across Northumbria.

Our Gateshead is seen as best practice to tackle growing issue of Adolescent to Parent Violence.
Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) continues to provide a joined-up multi-
agency assessment and action for high-risk victims of domestic abuse.

More serial perpetrators of domestic abuse were targeted via MATAC.

Additional training has been rolled out to improve knowledge and awareness of stalking and
harassment.

Anti-Social Behaviour and Environmental Crime

1.
2.

Carried out multi-agency targeted operations around taxis and scrap metal carriers.

Our multi-agency Operation Vienna Team is now fully operational — and is proactively tackling
important crime and disorder issues in Bensham.

Gateshead Council has introduced a new Environmental Enforcement Team.

Hosted four World Café events across Gateshead looking at what matters to local people and
working with communities to help address their concerns.

Operational Tasking is a partnership meeting helping us to deploy operational resources to
hotspot locations across the Borough on a weekly basis.

Implemented several Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) across Gateshead designed to
combat anti-social behaviour.

Operation Clasper has helped us to identify young people involved in committing anti-social
behaviour.

First ASB Injunction on a young person granted with positive requirements.

Platform QOutreach Project (POP) continues to engage with young people in hotspot anti-social
behaviour areas to divert them away from crime and ASB.

Restricting Supply — Drug Misuse

1.

Lo NoW

Creation of a bespoke Harm Reduction Inspector role in Northumbria Police to co-ordinate our
approach to tackling drug misuse.

Strengthened our partnership approach to addressing drug-related deaths following significant
increases — moved to a rapid response approach.

Re-established Central Drugs Alliance across Gateshead and Newcastle and made steps to
expand this across Northumbiria.

Increased the quality and volume of drug information available to partners through greater
sharing of intelligence and information.

Taken robust approaches to tackle increased needle finds in the community

Reviewed and recommissioned adult substance misuse services with a new integrated model
Started to develop a new Drugs Strategy for Gateshead.

Developed training for services/users around poly-drug use and mapped out current drugs issues.
Established a forum where practitioners share information on trends relating to drug use, drug
dealing and the effects these have on local communities.

Page 54



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

Hate Crime and Tension Monitoring

Increased the number of hate crime victims accessing practical and emotional support
Co-ordinated a successful Hate Crime Awareness Week in November 2018

Developed new and innovative Speed Faithing sessions with community groups.

Held a ‘Walk of Solidarity’ and ‘Experts by Experience’ Event.

Trained 70+ Workplace Hate Crime Champions to provide support to victims of hate crime.
Reviewed our Safe Reporting Centres in Gateshead

Developed our local Hate Crime Reporting process.

Delivered Hate and Mate Crime Awareness Training to 100+ staff.

NV AR WNRE

Preventing Violent Extremism

¢ Continued to raise awareness of Preventing Radicalisation with frontline staff — with 500+
people briefed.

e Ran a series of Channel HYDRA training sessions with North-East Counter Terrorism Unit to train
up staff on how to deal with a Prevent case.

¢ Reviewed and refreshed the local Prevent pathways.

¢ Northumbria-wide CONTEST Board was re-established.

e Contributed to refresh of Counter Terrorism Local Profile (CTLP) which is used to highlight the
current and emerging local threat.

e Commissioned voluntary sector organisations to deliver Prevent Awareness sessions in schools.

Disruption of Serious and Organised Crime

e Operation Sentinel, Northumbria Police’s dedicated operation to tackling serious and organised
crime, was launched.

e Contributed to disruption of the activity of criminal gangs across Northumbria.

e Delivered a series of sessions to County Lines to raise awareness of this emerging crime trend.

Repeat Victimisation and Vulnerability

¢ Increased use of ASB Tools and Powers available in the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014 to
provide support to victims.

¢ Closure orders have been used effectively to ban offenders from certain premises, offering
respite for victims and wider community.

e Multi-Agency Assessment and Referral Team (MAART) continue to operate effectively

e Established a Complex Offender Group to address concerns around chaotic and repeat
vulnerable clients.

¢ Joint operating frameworks developed around human trafficking and modern-day slavery.

¢ Increasing numbers of hidden victims of hate crime, domestic abuse and exploitation came
forward to report crimes.

e Our ASB Volunteers Project provides bespoke one-to-one support to victims of ASB.

Reducing Re-offending

¢ Re-introduced Integrated Offender Management to identify and tackle individuals causing the
most harm within local communities.

¢ Improved offender engagement with housing services through joint working.

Page 10

HOW IS THE BOARD HELD TO ACCOUNT?

The Community Safety Board holds overall responsibility for the delivery and performance of
community safety activity in Gateshead. Chief officers from the statutory organisations set the
direction of the Partnership Plan and will hold agencies to account for delivery.

The Board is scrutinised by Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee where local
councillors, elected by Gateshead residents, review the work of the partnership.

Page 55



Community Safety - Partnership Plan 2019/20 (DRAFT) Item 07i

As our activities require strong working links and relationships with other statutory Boards — we also
to provide updates to these partnership arenas.

End/Back Page

HELP AND SUPPORT

e Residents can report crime, anti-social behaviour or intelligence by calling 101; or 999 in an
emergency; or via Northumbria Police website (www.northumbria.police.uk)

e Environmental crimes such as fly tipping, littering and dog fouling can be reported to Gateshead
Council on 0191 433 3000 or www.fixmystreet.com

e Hate crime can be reported to Northumbria Police or to Gateshead Council on 0191 433 2648 or
online at www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/2835/Hate-crime

e For advice and support in relation to domestic abuse, please contact Gateshead Domestic Abuse
Helpline on 0191 433 3333.

e For advice and support in relation to drug and alcohol related difficulties, there are two agencies
that can help:
o Platform — Young People (up to 18 years) — 0191 460 1354
o Gateshead Recovery Partnership - 0191 5947821

CONTACT:
For more information on Community Safety in Gateshead — please contact:
Community Safety
Gateshead Council, Regent Street, NE8 1HH
Tel: 0191 433 3000
Email: communitysafety@gateshead.gov.uk

Page 56


http://www.northumbria.police.uk/
http://www.fixmystreet.com/
http://www.gateshead.gov.uk/article/2835/Hate-crime
mailto:communitysafety@gateshead.gov.uk

Agenda ltem 7

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
& Gat ejshea d OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMIITTEE
e COUW 24 June 2019

—

TITLE OF REPORT: Anti-Social Behaviour Update

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Communities
and Environment

Summary

Communities and Place Overview and Scrutiny Sub-Committee will be presented
with an update in relation to how anti-social behaviour is being tackled within
Gateshead (including an overview of the statutory tools and powers that are used to
protect victims and address offending behaviour. Committee will also receive details
of local multi-agency Tasking and Problem Solving arrangements that are in place in
the Borough to target hotspot locations and resolve ASB issues for local residents.

Background

As a reminder, the Community Safety Partnership has a statutory duty to work in
partnership to address anti-social behaviour issues impacting on local communities —
and we have, for a significant number of years, had strong and robust arrangements
in place.

Presentation

The presentation will provide members with an update in relation to how anti-social

behaviour is being tackled within Gateshead and will focus on:

e The operational delivery models (including Neighbourhood Tasking and Problem
Solving) that are currently in place;

e Overview of the ASB Tools and Powers that are being used within Gateshead to
address ASB concerns/issues.

e Specific case study examples of how partnership working has been used to help
solve problems for residents will be provided. This will include specific examples
of local interventions that are being deployed to help address ASB in estates as
well as to tackle the behaviour of complex and persistent offenders.

Recommendation

Committee are asked to:

(i) Note the contents of the presentation/report;

(i) Comment on and scrutinise the approaches undertaken locally to address
anti-social behaviour, and

(iii)  Agree to receive further updates at a future Committee.

Contact: Nicola Johnson Ext: 0191 433 3541

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8

COMMUNITIES AND PLACE

% Gat e_lshea d OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMIITTEE

Council ——— 24 June 2019
TITLE OF REPORT: The Council’s Approach to tackling problematic sites

and derelict spaces

REPORT OF: Colin Huntington, Strategic Director, Communities
and Environment

Summary

The purpose of this report is to set out the approach to dealing with vacant sites in
private ownership in Gateshead.

At future meetings examples of a range of different sites and proposed solutions will
be presented to demonstrate the complexity of tackling the issues associated with
some sites and highlight the range of tools and powers available.

Background

The Council has limited powers to deal with vacant sites in the private sector. It can
serve a notice under Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act if the land is
untidy to the extent of affecting the amenity of adjoining residents. If the site is filthy
and verminous then action can be taken under public health legislation. However,
there are many empty and vacant sites which do not meet the criteria for such action
but their improvement and redevelopment would be welcomed by the community.
and provide a valuable contribution to regeneration or meeting housing need in the
area.

Approach

Planning and Development Committee receive a report at each meeting which
identifies the action that has been taken against such sites. Behind the scenes there
has often been a considerable amount of work to get to that stage. Budget cuts and
losses of external funding mean that the Council now has only one dedicated officer
to deal with all vacant and problematic sites and empty properties in Gateshead.
This officer has been seconded into the environmental enforcement team to ensure
a multi disciplinary approach is taken to try to bring the vacant sites back into
effective use, using all the powers the Council has at its disposal. In addition a
working group made up of relevant officers from services across the Council has
been created to focus action and co-ordinate resources to address the issues
associated with these sites.

Initially this group developed a comprehensive list of significant vacant and

problematic sites within the Borough and then prioritised actions for each site to
ensure progress.

Page 59



Current position

There are currently 46 vacant and problematic sites identified. The list has been
informed by using the Brownfield register, planning application data, Ward Based
Issues and personal knowledge from officers on the working group. Ward Councillors
have also provided information regarding sites in their wards which have been added
to the list for the group to work towards resolving.

Case studies

A lot of work takes place behind the scenes and because of GDPR and legal issues
it will not be possible to share precise details in this forum of work in hand. As ever
officers are happy to speak to members individually about any sites of concern in
their wards. The following case studies should give committee an example of the
type of case studies that will be presented:

Example of success — A property on a main shopping street was noted as a priority
case by the working group due to long standing problems that this property has
caused. The site was in a significant state of disrepair and potentially dangerous due
to structural issues with the building. Improvements to the surrounding area also
resulted in the vacant property causing significant harm to the visual amenity of the
street scene in a Conservation Area.

To tackle this issue a joint Council plan was developed resulting in a Section 215
Notice being served-on the owner with a legal pathway in place to demolish the
building should the owner not carry out the instructions in the notice to resolve the
issue in a timely manner.

Example of ongoing work — A site in the centre of a regeneration area is a long-
term vacant site with the last owner operating an A4 class use from the premises.
The site is in a prominent location and influences the Councils future regeneration of
this area. Along with this, the successful redevelopment of the neighbouring site has
further highlighted the problems with this vacant property.

Currently there is no interest in the site mainly as a result of the current owner’s
valuation of the site, with the forthcoming regeneration within the immediate vicinity it
may make a proposed development more attractive and increase developer demand
for the site.

Recommendation

Committee are asked to:

(i) Note the contents of the proposed approach to presenting the case studies

(i)  Agree to receive case studies in September 2019 and March 2020 as set out
in the committee work programme

Contact: lan Stevenson Ext: 0191 433 2812

Page 60



Agenda Item 9

= Gateshead COMMUNITIES AND PLACE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

HH Council e
— 24 June 2019

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Work Programme

REPORT OF: Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

Summary

The report sets out the provisional work programme for Communities and Place Overview
and Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2019/20

1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 29
April 2019 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme.

2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands. Any changes proposed
to the programme are set out in bold and italics for ease of identification.

Recommendations
3. The Committee is asked to
a) Note the provisional programme;
b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee

to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to
consider.

Contact: Angela Frisby Extension: 2138

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Communities & Place OSC 2019/20 Work Programme

24 June 2019 e Constitution / role and remit

e Making Gateshead a place where everyone
thrives — Year End Assessment and
Performance Delivery 2018-19

e Safer Gateshead Partnership Plan

¢ Anti - social behaviour

e Managing Derelict Spaces (focus on varying
specific sites)

e Work Programme

16 Sept 2019 e Managing the Environment — Update / Case
Study

e OSC Review of the Council’s and Partner’s
Approach to Roads and Highways —
Monitoring Report

e Homelessness — Progress Update

e Work Programme

28 Oct 2019 e OSC Review — Work to address skill
shortages and increase employment
opportunities — Monitoring Report

¢ How we deliver Housing Strategy

e Private Rented — Progress Update

e Culture / Tourism/ Land of Oak and Iron
Legacy — Progress Update

e Work Programme

9 Dec 2019 e Implementation of Safer Gateshead Priorities
— six monthly

e Making Gateshead a place where everyone
thrives — Six Monthly Assessment of
Performance and Delivery 2019 - 20

e Work Programme

27 Jan 2020 e Managing Derelict Spaces (focus on
utilisation of powers at Council disposal /
additional activities to tackle issues)

¢ Waste Management — Progress Update

e Work Programme

9 March 2020 e The Flood and Water Management Act
5.30pm 2010: Annual Progress Report
e Managing the Environment — Update / Case
Study
e Work Programme
20 April 2020 e OSC Review — Work to address skKill

shortages and increase employment
opportunities — Monitoring Report

e Annual Report of the Gateshead Housing
Customer Scrutiny Panel

e Safer Gateshead Draft Priorities 20-21

e Beamish - Annual Update

e Managing Derelict Spaces — (focus on
progress being made)

Page 63



Appendix 1

| | e Annual Work Programme Review |
Issues to slot in
a) Postal Provision
b) Site Visit — Land of Oak and Iron

Page 64



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meeting
	3 Constitution
	4 Role and Remit
	5 Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives - Year End Assessment and Performance Delivery 2018-19
	Communities & Place OSC_V5.0

	6 Safer Gateshead Partnership Plan
	Partnership Plan 201920 (awaiting graphics)

	7 Anti Social Behaviour
	8 The Council's Approach to tackling problematic sites and derelict spaces
	9 Annual Work Programme
	Appendix CommPlace OSC DRAFT 2019-20 Work Progv3


